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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”), | present to you the
audited consolidated final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Group recorded
turnover and loss attributable to the shareholders of HK$124,463,000
(2014: HK$123,100,000) and HK$5,519,000 (2014: HK$13,456,000)
respectively. The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: Nil).

The loss for the year 2015 was mainly due to loss on change in
fair value of convertible bond of HK$38,970,000 and income tax
expense of HK$12,655,000.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Group continued to
focus on coal resources mining business.

During the financial year, the growth of PRC economy continued
to slow down. The demand for coals from the market has been
decreasing gradually in recent years as a result of fewer large scale
industrial and infrastructure projects and the promotion of the use
of clean energy by the PRC government, which also had negative
impacts on the coal price, exerting high pressure to the Group’s
operation. However, the management of the Group has adjusted
short-term operation strategy and modified the production plan
through understanding the local government on the policies and
taking advantages of the “One Belt One Road” initiative. The Group
will keep strictly controlling the costs and expenses to maintain a
strong financial position as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT xEi#f &

Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*#

Pursuant to the instructions from the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang
Land Department”) had to plan for a management restructuring of
seven different coal mines (including the Zexu Mine) in the Xiheishan
Mining Area (the “Optimization and Upgrading Plan”), consolidating
some smaller mines together so as to increase the size efficiency
(for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2011). After being informed of this Optimization and
Upgrading Plan, the Board has requested our management in
Xinjiang to conduct frequent meetings and negotiations with the
Xinjiang Land Department and other relevant government authorities
in order to protect the Company’s interest in relation to the
exploration permit of the Zexu Mine (the “Exploration Permit”).

According to the letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the
“Changji Administrative Bureau”) informing the updated status
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the following proposals
(the “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan”) in relation to the
Company’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine have been submitted to
the working group head office for coal industry structural upgrade
work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for consideration and
approval:

1. The Company’s Kaiyuan Mine would be restructured and
upgraded, and the exploration right in the Zexu Mine granted
to the Company would be terminated; and

2. The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Company
is now conducting mining activities, was proposed to
be increased from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12
square kilometers, with the estimated coal resources of
approximately 131.18 million tonnes.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE#R &

Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan# and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*# (continued)

As at the date hereof, the Company has still not yet received any
written notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department
in respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2014,
the Exploration Permit of the Zexu Mine of the Company originally
expired on 20 February 2014. Concerned that the Company’s
position and rights in the Optimization and Upgrading Plan might be
compromised since the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan
had still not then been approved by the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region Government, the Company through its Xinjiang staff has
continued to make informal representations to Chinese officials
urging them to exercise administrative discretion to renew the
Exploration Permit despite the fact that the Company had earlier
obtained a PRC legal opinion advising the Company no further
renewal beyond 20 February 2014 could be obtained for Zexu Mine
Exploration Permit. Eventually, on 19 March 2014, the Company
obtained a renewal permit from Xinjiang Land Department granting
the renewal of the Exploration Permit from 25 February 2014 to 25
February 2016.

# “Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Management Restructuring Plan” in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2011 and in the announcements, notices, circulars,
interim reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

i “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Updated Restructuring Proposals” in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 June 2012 and in the announcements, notices, circulars, interim
reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

The Board considers that the coal business is full of challenges
and endeavors to achieve our goal of bringing maximum values
for shareholders by strengthening management of the Company,
controlling the cost of coal mining, modified the production plan
through understanding the local government on the policies and
taking advantages of the “One Belt One Road” initiative, seizing
new chances, exploring new markets, and seeking for investment
opportunities.

BILABRARRBILAREF AR ZER
(%)

BZE AR ARAHIARERERBNERT B
FIStBIC AR E R T RB A ER Z (T E
EBAN ©

BRIEARFBAE-—E—NF=A=-+—H
A% ARE 2 ZBEEREEERDET
AEREN_ZT—WF_A-+HEM- A
REIAREH T RER S RENEHTH
BB ELE - RNABIBNMEE AR R
oA MR REFELAE - Bt -
BEARANFANRERESHBEEZER @ 45
EARRZEREBREEERDETAIFERZ
T-NF_A-TRETSHESEE &
AARMDEREFEE T THRIAME 81
TTIEIEABRA - BRITFEITHRENIBREUER
BEERMEAIE - && RZZ—UF
ZA+NH  AAREHERLERESE
BEEARMEAIE  HEREEERDET
AFEA T NF_A-+HRHEEE"Z
—NE-_BA=-+HH-

" [(BIEARFTRIBZARARR AR/ =T
—— T -A+t-HNRXERNZAREZ
ARRAE B B PHRERFR
ikt B EAE ] -

& [BIEAREHFRIIEZARARREHAR
“E-_FRATHENAERRZBHR
ZARBAE B B - PHRERSF
HhiRt Al B EAEE] -

EXEeRARREVHEFEZ LB - AQF)
BN IR AR EIE ~ 1EHIRIEF R
R C BB S BT R M B R
g AREN —F—BIBEK  SHHR
B RIS RMERERE - LWERS
BREESKEENBR

6 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B &R EZRRAT



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT xEi#f &

Although the Company has obtained a renewal Exploration Permit
of Zexu Mine from Xinjiang Land Department from 25 February 2014
to 25 February 2016, no development or production activity is now
taking place and we have no existing plan to apply for the mining
permit of Zexu Mine as the Company is still waiting for the written
notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department in
respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading
Plan. The Company will continue to follow up the updated status of
the approval process of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading
Plan, in order to protect the interests of the Company in Kaiyuan
Mine and Zexu Mine.

Despite the aforesaid progress of the Updated Optimization
and Upgrading Plan, the Company is still waiting for the written
notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department in
respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and Upgrading
Plan. It is therefore uncertain whether the proposals can be approved
by the PRC Government eventually. For this reason, the Company
would keep all options open and the Company would not at this
stage rule out the possibility of resuming the exploration process for
Zexu Mine and then applying for a mining permit of the Zexu Mine
either by the Company alone or jointly with other companies having
coal mines in the vicinity if the circumstances warrant such course of
action being taken.

| wish to thank my fellow directors, management and staff for their
unrelentless efforts for the business development of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, | express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, employees and business
partners for their continuing support of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$124,463,000
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately
HK$123,100,000). It represents an increase of approximately
HK$1,363,000 or 1.11% as compared with last year.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
increased to approximately HK$55,166,000 (2014: approximately
HK$22,264,000). This was mainly due to decrease in cost of sales in
the period as a result of the lower extraction cost.

Loss for the year

Loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
approximately HK$5,519,000 (2014: approximately HK$13,456,000),
representing a decrease of HK$7,937,000 compared with last year.
The net effect of decreasing in loss was mainly due to the increase
in gross profit of HK$32,902,000, increase in income tax expense
of HK$13,170,000 and increase in loss on change in fair value of
convertible bond of HK$23,597,000.

Business segment

The Group’s operating segments, based on information reported
to the chief operating decision makers who are also the executive
directors, for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, is more specifically focused on the types of goods
delivered and services provided by the Group’s operating divisions.

Coal mine business is the only reportable operating segment from
which the Group derived its revenue from sale of coal. Accordingly,
no further segment information is provided.

Coal Mining Business

Coal mining is the sole business of the Group at present. It
contributed a turnover of approximately HK$124,463,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: approximately HK$123,100,000),
a 1.11% increase as compared with 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEiH R o

Sales and Production of Coals

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group sold 1.32
million tonnes of coals with total sales income of approximately
HK$124,463,000. Details of coal sales in tonnes are listed in the
below table.

HRBEERLEE
HE-"Z-—AF=A=1t—HBIEE K
EEE 1.2 EM/R - BHERABY
124,463,000 7T ° LAMART 2 Bk S S 7E 18
AT -

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLEFE

Coal sales

Coal Sales (tonnes) and Percentage of Coal Sales

Saw Cut Coal PRER AR SR
Large Coal ABRE
Middle Coal s
Small Medium Coal N
38 Coal =N\H
Slack Coal TREE
Weathered Coal R
Total Sales RIHE

Reserves and Resources

The Group owns one mining right and one exploration right in
Xinjiang, PRC including Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine and Zexu Open
Pit Coal Mine respectively. The estimated remaining coal reserve in
Kaiyuan Mine was 12.13 million tonnes as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
13.96 million tonnes). During the year, there were 1.83 million tonnes
of coal being extracted. The original exploration permit of Zexu Mine
had expired on 20 February 2014 and a renewal of the permit was
granted by the Xinjiang Land Department on 19 March 2014 to
further extend the permit to 25 February 2016. The following tables
are the estimated coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine
and estimated coal resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine as of
31 March 2010 conducted by John T. Boyd Company in June 2010.

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—F
1,314,455 1,432,318
tonneslif tonnesii
BxEHE (M) REREET DL
Coal Sales Coal Sales
(tonnes) in %
IR S BRSHE
(&) Btk
1,504 0.11
131,676 10.02
269,031 20.47
97,068 7.38
71,362 5.43
618,740 47.07
125,074 9.52
1,314,455 100.00

AEBRPEHBIREREENZEER
Big - DRSS —EREER —TBHHE -
R-ZE—RAF=A=+—H ' JURKEREMHT
K HIEHE A12. 138 BME( - T —PU4F :
13.96 B BME) - FAFE1.83 8 EWEE K o
EEEBNREHEFAIEER - — N
F-A-tHER BEEZHEHFITEER
—EE=F+NBERFERLTERER
b E—PERFUBE_ZT—F=A
—+FH » F&AJohn T. Boyd Companyi?
—E-EEXNAR-E-TFE=A=1+—8°
FURTERERE 2 Mt R E REEERE
B2 AR ERRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB 13 & 547

Reserves and Resources (continued) HEREIRE(E)
Estimated coal reserves for the Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal Mine: RBERER Gt ERESE

Average Mineable Marketable Reserves (million tonnes)

Seam Thickness (m) As of 31 March 2010
T B ERIE B AER#E(EEM)
EHEECK) BE-Z—ZHF=H=+—H
Total (Coal/Parting) Proved Probable Total % of Total
L4t
Seam Bench RE BT URE%RE) HE -CIES at BAkL
North of Current Pit
(Potentially Oxidized)
RAEBHR L (BaEaEt)
B, B, 13.1 - 4.58 4.58 100.00
Mine Plan Area
LR el E
B, B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 25.00
B, B, 19.6 10.86 - 10.86 75.00
14.43 - 14.43 100.00
Total
st
B, B, 10.8 3.57 - 3.57 19.00
B, B, 17.7 10.86 4.58 15.44 81.00
14.43 4.58 19.01 100.00
Approximately 75% of the total reserves are classified as Proved. RIFENT5% DB RBELER
Coal Reserve as at 31 March 2015 = Coal Reserve as at 31 March RIZZE—AF=A=+—HZEERE =
2014 — Amount of coal extracted (the “Coal Extracts”) by the Group —Z—NF=ZA=+—HZREEH=Z $
during 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. SER-ZE-—NFUNA—BE_ZT—F1F
= A=+—BHBERE 2 E XK= ([ ERE
2]) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEiH R o

Reserves and Resources (continued) HEREIRE(E)
Estimated coal resources for the Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine 2/BRXERIFESE Y HEHERERE
Exploration Right area totalling 119.38 Mt, are summarized below: H#119.38F &M - it T -

Marketable Resources
(million tonnes)

AEER(EEM)

Average Mineable % of
Seam Thickness (m) Measured Indicated Total Resources
AR ER R B IHEIR
Seam pod=] FHEE(CK) A 2= et Bok
B, B, 8.5 10.23 10.46 20.69 17
Bs Bs 3.9 2.77 3.98 6.75 6
Bs Bs 6.3 5.80 10.42 16.22 14
B, B, 1.8 0.29 0.01 0.30 1
B. B. 6.1 6.85 10.21 17.06 14
B, B 6.3 8.06 8.03 16.09 13
B, B, 21.1 22.58 19.69 42.27 35
Total #&5t 56.58 62.80 119.38 100

Cost of Sales SHE R A

The cost of sales for the year was HK$69,297,000 (2014: FAEEK A 469,297,000/ T (=ZF —M
HK$100,836,000). The cost mainly comprised machine rental cost 4 : 100,836,000/87T) ° XN 2B FE#M
and direct labor cost. The decrease in cost of sales during the year THERARBEEBEKA - FRHEKAR
was mainly due to the lower extraction cost. X =2 RN ERIEETE o

Geographic segment HE 5 48

The geographical location of customers is determined based on the B PR B KIS mAMBEE © &K
location where the goods are delivered. The Group’s turnover and SBIZEXBERKLLEXRETREPEH 2%
results from operations are all derived from activities in the PRC. 1% ° fFERBURINE BT - KEE 2 FB2E
No business activities are covered outside the PRC. The principal ~ EJRMIIAHE o Eitt - BERMH MR D
assets of the Group are also located in the PRC. Accordingly, no ~ &#}

geographical segment information is required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE 1K 947

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had:

o net current assets of approximately HK$324,547,000 (2014:
approximately HK$282,852,000). The substantial increase in
net current assets was mainly due to the increase of structured
deposit, and cash and cash equivalents by approximately
HK$42,614,000.

° structured deposit of approximately HK$27,923,000
(2014: Nil) and cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$334,151,000 (2014: approximately HK$319,460,000)
which were the major components of the Group’s current
assets of approximately HK$385,624,000 (2014: approximately
HK$334,865,000).

° current liabilities of approximately HK$61,077,000 (2014:
approximately HK$52,013,000) which comprised mainly trade
and other payables of HK$51,680,000 (2014: HK$49,616,000).

° non-current liabilities of approximately 255,354,000 (2014:
approximately HK$217,782,000) which comprised mainly
convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$244,201,000 (2014
approximately HK$205,231,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio was 1.54 (2014: 1.25). The computation
is based on total debt (convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) divided by total equity.

Charges on Group’s Assets
As at 31 March 2015, none of the Group’s assets was under
charges (2014: Nil).

The Group mainly earns revenue in RMB and incurs costs in RMB
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk based on fluctuations between Hong Kong dollars and RMB
arising from its core operation in the PRC. In order to minimize the
foreign currency risk exposure between these two currencies, the
Group maintained cash balances in both currencies that are sufficient
to meet three to four months’ of operating cash flows requirements
of the Group.

RZBE-—RF=A=+—H x&EEE :

o  RBEEFEL324,547,000/8 (=
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BEEFEBRELN  NEBHRE
BIEFRERE MRS SEEE HM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEBEiH R o

Apart from the issue of convertible bond at their face value of
HK$200,000,000, the Group finances its operation mainly by internal
generated resources.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 90 employees (2014: 91)
spreading among mainland China and the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC. Employment relationship has been
well maintained. The Group has adopted an extensive training policy
for its employees. It has also sponsored senior executives for higher
education programmes.
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Ms. Lo Fong Hung, aged 60, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Ms. Lo is also the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company and is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lo also serves for several non-
listed companies, namely as the chairman of China International
Fund Limited, China Sonangol International Holding Limited
and China Sonangol International Limited and as the director of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and New Bright International
Development Limited. Since 2004, Ms. Lo started exploring and
developing energy resources and industrial investment world-
wide. Ms. Lo owns 30% shareholding interests in New Bright
International Development Limited, which currently holds 70%
shareholding interests in China Sonangol International Limited. China
Sonangol International Limited is the holding company of Ascent
Goal Investments Limited, and the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Lo is the wife of Mr. Wang Xiangfei.

Mr. Wang Xiangfei, aged 63, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Wang is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated from Renmin
University of China with a bachelor degree in economics in 1982.
Mr. Wang is now a Senior Accountant. Mr. Wang serves for several
non-listed companies, namely as the vice chief financial officer of
Sonangol Sinopec International Limited and as the financial advisor
of China Sonangol International Holding Limited. Mr. Wang is also
an independent non-executive director of China Development Bank
International Investment Limited (formerly known as New Capital
International Investment Limited), a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In addition, Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive director
of Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Group Company Limited
from the April of 2002 to the April of 2008, Chongging Iron & Steel
Company Limited from the July of 2002 to the June of 2009, China
CITIC Bank Corporation Limited from the December of 2006 to the
November of 2012, companies listed on the Stock Exchange and
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was the independent non-
executive director of Shandong Chenming Paper Holdings Limited
from the April of 2010 to the May of 2013, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was the independent non-executive
director of SEEC Media Group Limited from the June 2003 to the
May 2015, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was
also the external supervisor of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank
from the April 2009 to the May 2015. Previously, Mr. Wang had
also served as an executive director and CEO of China Everbright
International Limited, an executive director of China Everbright
Limited and China Everbright Technology Limited (now known as
China Haidian Holdings Limited), a director & assistant general
manager of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Wang is
the husband of Ms. Lo Fong Hung.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE Rk e EE A SEE

Mr. Kwan Man Fai, aged 46, is an executive director of the
Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr. Kwan is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in laws and
a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Kwan also holds a master
degree in laws from The London School of Economics and Social
Sciences, the University of London and a master degree in the
PRC law from the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Kwan is now a
consultant of Messrs. Anthony Siu & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwan has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance and
banking work, including assisting various companies in their listing
on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Lam graduated from the University of Southampton, England with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Statistics. Mr. Lam is
a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director of an investment bank
and has over 20 years experience in investment banking as well as
over 3 years experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam is also
the independent non-executive director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings)
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

In addition, Mr. Lam was the independent non-executive director
of China Fortune Financial Group Limited from 14 September 2007
to 11 April 2014, Applied Development Holdings Limited from 1
October 2005 to 12 December 2011, Pearl Oriental Oil Limited
from 3 October 2008 to 19 March 2013, King Stone Energy Group
Limited from 23 April 2012 to 22 March 2013, Value Convergence
Holdings Limited from 4 January 2010 to 24 May 2012, CT
Environmental Group Limited from 14 June 2011 to 15 April 2014,
China Chuanglian Education Group Limited from 29 January 2008
to 5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings Limited from 17 November
2010 to 16 May 2011, Well Way Group Limited from 24 March
2011 to 16 April 2014, Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited from 22
December 2008 to 27 April 2012 and Finet Group Limited from 5
August 2009 to 24 January 2011, companies listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond, aged 49, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008.
Mr. Wong is a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
holds a certificate in financial management (CFM). Mr. Wong holds
a bachelor degree in chemical engineering and a master degree in
economics. Mr. Wong is an executive director and deputy chairman
of Raymond Industrial Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director
of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey, aged 46, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company appointed on 25 March 2008. Mr.
Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in laws and a postgraduate certificate in laws. Mr. Chan also
holds master degrees in laws from the City University of Hong Kong
and from the People’s University of China. Mr. Chan is currently a
partner of Messrs. David Y.Y. Fung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan has extensive experience in civil and commercial crime
litigation and also handles various transactions for corporate clients
and banks in Hong Kong.

Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng, aged 62, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company appointed on 14 July 2014. Mr. Xu holds a
master degree in economics from PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua
University and a bachelor degree in finance from the Shanxi Financial
and Economic University. Mr. Xu currently is the Senior Investment
Advisor of China Assets (Holdings) Limited and he has over 20 years’
experience in investment and finance industry.

Mr. Li Chun Fung, aged 33, is the company secretary of the
Company appointed on 21 April 2015. Mr. Li graduated from
the Imperial College, University of London with master degree in
chemical engineering. Mr. Li is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive experience in
corporate governance and compliance matters.

Mr. Li filled the vacancy arising from the resignation of Ms. Pang Kwei
Ping on 2 March 2015. Ms. Pang was appointed as the company
secretary on 10 July 2014 after Ms. Hung Che Wan resigned from
the same role on the same day.
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The Company is committed to maintain statutory and regulatory
standards and adherence to the principles of corporate governance
emphasizing on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Directors had reviewed the information contained in a
questionnaire in respect of the Company’s performance of its
corporate governance practices that the Company has applied the
principles of the code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March
2015 (“the year under review”), save for the deviations from code
provisions A.2.1, A.6.7, C.1.2 and E.1.2 as disclosed below.

Roles and responsibilities

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.
It should act in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders
at all times. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors
the performance and activities of the senior management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the day
to day operations of the Company whereas the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of financial and management reporting to the Board
and shareholders of the Company as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.
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Board composition
The members of the Board during the year under review and up to
the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

Xu Xiao Sheng (appointed on 14 July 2014)

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee at a meeting
as at the date of this report, the Board considers that all Directors
have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise so as to
give a balance of skills, knowledge and experience, and diversity
of perspectives required for the running of an effective Board.
The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors. The brief biographical details
of the Directors and relationship among them are set out in the
section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report.

Board diversity

In September 2013, the Company adopted a policy on diversity of
the Board members. The policy is to review, assess and recommend
any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of any directors
to the Board from time to time after considering a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
tenure of appointment to allow for the Company’s business model
and specific needs.
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Board meetings and general meeting

During the year under review, the Board held eight board meetings
comprising four regular meetings and four ad-hoc meetings, and
the Company held one general meeting. The attendance records of
individual Directors at the board meetings and at the general meeting
are set out below:

Number of Number of
board meetings general meeting
attended/ attended/
eligible eligible
Name of Directors to attend to attend
Executive Directors:
Lo Fong Hung (Chairman and
Managing Director) 8/8 0/1
Wang Xiangfei 7/7# 11
Kwan Man Fai 6/7t 11
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 7/8 11
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 7/8 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 7/8 0/1
Xu Xiao Sheng 5/5* 1/1
* Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng was appointed on 14 July 2014
# Independent Non-executive Directors had attended meeting(s)

independently held with the Chairman of the Board on the direction of the
Group’s strategy and policies during the year under review.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely
manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality
appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

EEEERRREREEE

REBFEER EF
g%

RARBGRIT—RBRKE
EREFEETELBRAE

& BREOXEH

(IR

BEEpR

HITEE:

BhH(IRRES
BgeE)

FAR

X

BIFHTES
BEXE
MK
RiEE
SN

BERT\REFEE
KR ERE & - A
&k o ERIE
TR AR
HE HE
ExegE BRXAE
e/ EERE/
BER BER
HE HE
8/8 01
i 1/1
6/7¢ 1/1
7/8 11
7/8 1
7/8 01
55 1/1

FNBRER T -NFEL AT HRERE

*

BYFMTERENDBEFEALFRESS

EEIE AR BRI MR MR TTEE

PAN
=
=
=3

KR OIS IAETE

REZHURBARANE  MARWESR
BREFSREFSAETRMAERRR

EFeEFREKBRFEREMEAEEN
AREEZVEER  URERSEITHR

=

Annual Report

FiR

19



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1t ¥ &R

Board meetings and general meeting (continued)

Under code provision C.1.2 of the Code, management should
provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the
board as a whole and each director to discharge their duties under
the Listing Rules. By reference to the response to query no. 24A in
the Frequently Asked Questions Series 17 (released on 19 December
2011/last updated on 1 April 2015), monthly updates should be
provided to directors as soon as practicable after the month-end.
Although the code provision C.1.2 does not specify a deadline, it
will not be useful for directors if they receive the information two
months after the month-end. Directors will not be able to monitor the
issuer’s financial affairs and inside information disclosure unless the
information is timely.

During the year under review and up to the date of this report,
monthly management accounts made up to December 2014,
January to March 2015 were made attention to the Board but late
delivered to the Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)
on the following dates respectively, mainly due to vacancy for the
financial controller of the Company during the year under review:

Made up months of the monthly Dates made attention to

management accounts the Board

BREERB ZENAHB REESSEIZHY
December 2014 12 January 2015
—T-MmF+=A —FT-h¥—A+T=H
January 2015 16 March 2015
—T—HF—H —E-hE=HA+XH
February 2015 16 March 2015
“T-RFZA —E-hF=H+"H
March 2015 21 April 2015
“T-RF=A —ET-RFEWMA=+—H

Even though code provision C.1.2 does not specify deadline
requirement to provide such monthly updates, to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties, timely and
fast circulation of such monthly updates is expected not only to
all Executive Directors, but also to all INEDs. However, the Board
confirmed that all these monthly management accounts made up to
December 2014, January to March 2015 did not contain or reveal
any inside information.
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Board meetings and general meeting (continued)

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by any Director or Committee Members.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by
the Nomination Committee. In accordance with the Company’s Bye-
laws, at each general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four Independent Non-executive Directors
who represent one-third of the Board and with one of whom holds
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise. Code provision A.4.1 specifies that
Non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

Each of the first three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company was appointed on 25 March 2008 and entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years. Their
service agreements had been extended for three years commencing
on 25 March 2011 and further extended for three years commencing
on 25 March 2014. Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 14 July 2014. However, they are still
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and, after annual assessment by
the Nomination Committee at a meeting as at the date of this report,
the Company considers that all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
the general meeting and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. It was noted that one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2014
due to other business commitments.

Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been provided to cover potential legal actions against Directors and
officers.

Training and support for Directors

All Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
The Group provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. Details of the continuous
professional development participated by the Directors, that the
Company received, are set out below.

Attended seminars or

Name of Directors briefing/read materials

Executive Directors:

Lo Fong Hung v
(Chairman and Managing Director)

Wang Xiangfei v

Kwan Man Fai 4

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Wong Man Hin, Raymond (4
Lam Ka Wai, Graham v
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 4
Xu Xiao Sheng 4
A Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng, a newly appointed Director, was provided with a

comprehensive, formal and tailored induction during the year under
review so as to ensure he was fully aware of his responsibilities as a
listed company director under the Listing Rules and any other regulatory
requirements.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by its Directors. All Directors of
the Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2015.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive (“CE”) should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any officer
with CE title. Ms. Lo Fong Hung, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, also carried out the responsibility of
CE during such period. In view of the size of operation of the
Group, the Board considered that this structure is more suitable
for the Company as it can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company’s strategies.

The Board has established three committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs and to assist in the execution
of the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own
terms of reference. The views of different committees and their
recommendation not only ensure proper control of the Group but
also the continual achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the committees
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was set up in March 1999 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company have included the duties which are set out in code
provision C.3.83 of the Code, with appropriate modifications when
necessary. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was
amended on 27 March 2012 in order to comply with the amendment
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently consists of four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Lam Ka Wai,
Graham as the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Wong Man
Hin, Raymond, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey and Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng.
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Audit Committee (continued)
A total of three meetings were held during the year under review and
the individual attendance of members are as follows:

Number of
meetings attended/

Name of members eligible to attend

Lam Ka Wai, Graham (Chairman) 3/3
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 3/3
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 3/3
Xu Xiao Sheng 2/2*

* Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng was appointed on 14 July 2014

The Audit Committee reviewed the interim and annual results,
internal control system, and financial reporting matters in conjunction
with the external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the
accounting treatment adopted by the Company and had the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information
in this report complies with the applicable accounting standards and
Appendix 16: Disclosure of Financial Information of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was set up in July 2005 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in code provision B.1.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee was amended on 27 March 2012 in order
to comply with the amendment of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five members, an
Executive Director of the Company namely, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and
four Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company namely,
Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey and
Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng.

The remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for determination, as
authorised by the shareholders at the annual general meeting
having regarded to the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions. The Board conducts
regular review of the structure and composition of the Committee
with particular attention to the skills, knowledge and experience of
individual members.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year under review, one meeting was held and the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the existing remuneration
packages of the Board and the senior management of the Company.
The individual attendance of members are as follows:

Number of
meeting attended/

Name of members eligible to attend

Wong Man Hin, Raymond (Chairman) 11
Kwan Man Fai 11
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 1/1
Xu Xiao Sheng 0/0*

*

Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng was appointed on 14 July 2014

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was set up in March 2012 with specific
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee which are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company have included the duties which are
set out in code provision A.5.2 of the Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary.

The Nomination Committee will take into consideration a candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise, knowledge and diversity of
perspectives, the requirements applicable to the Company and the
structure and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
identifies, reviews and nominates with diligence and care that
candidates suitably qualified as Board members before making
recommendation to the Board for their final appointment. Factors
such as gender, age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience will also be taken into account to maintain a
balanced composition and diversity of perspectives of the Board.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee at a meeting
as at the date of this report, the Company considers under the policy
of Board diversity, that the Board is currently composed of diversified
members of different gender and age, with education in economic,
legal, accounting and chemical engineering respectively from leading
universities in China (including Hong Kong) and England. Business
and professional experiences of the Board are even diversified which
include but not limited to, multinational entrepreneurship, listed
companies directorship in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen,
legal practices in Hong Kong, corporation finance and investment
banking, accounting and auditing, and financial management.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the Chairman and
the Managing Director of the Company, Ms. Lo Fong Hung as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, Executive Director of the
Company, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and four Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company namely, Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond,
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey and Mr. Xu Xiao
Sheng as the members of the Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, one meeting was held and the
Nomination Committee had reviewed and adopted the existing
policy for the nomination of Directors. The individual attendance of
members are as follows:

Number of
meeting attended/

Name of members eligible to attend

Lo Fong Hung (Chairman) 11
Kwan Man Fai 1/1
Wong Man Hin, Raymond 1/1
Lam Ka Wai, Graham 11
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey 11
Xu Xiao Sheng 0/0*

*

Mr. Xu Xiao Sheng was appointed on 14 July 2014

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.
During the year under review, the Board committees had developed
and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and reviewed
the compliance with the Code and disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment relating to annual and interim
reports, inside information and price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures under the Listing Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant
to statutory requirements. As at 31 March 2015, the Directors of
the Company are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern basis.
The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 42 of this
report.

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained within the Group. The Group
has adopted internal control procedures and policies to safeguard
the assets, to ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and
to carry out a reliable financial reporting and to guarantee compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the Group has engaged SHINEWING
Risk Services Limited to conduct compliance and operation reviews
on the Group and reported its findings to the Audit Committee.
The reviews were performed half-yearly and covered, among other
things, review of the Group’s compliance procedures of Chapter 13:
Continuing obligations, Chapter 14: Notifiable transactions, Chapter
14A: Connected transactions, Chapter 18: Mineral companies
and Appendix 14: Corporate governance code and corporate
governance report of the Listing Rules; and Part XIVA: Disclosure of
inside information of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, fees paid or payable to the
auditor of the Company, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, and its
affiliates by the Group are as follows:

Audit services EZ R
Non-audit and taxation services IEEZ RIS AR
Total 4t

Mr. Li Chun Fung acts as the Company Secretary of the Company
since 21 April 2015 to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation of
Ms. Pang Kwei Ping on 2 March 2015. During the year under review,
Ms. Pang was appointed as the Company Secretary on 10 July 2014
to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation of Ms. Hung Che Wan
on the same date. Both of Ms. Pang, the former Company Secretary,
and Mr. Li, the current Company Secretary, undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to update her/his skills and knowledge during
the year under review.

A Shareholders Communication Policy was adopted on 27 March
2012 to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company. The policy was available on the Company’s website. The
Company has established various channels of communications with
its shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of the
Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting provides
an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
External auditor is also available at the annual general meeting to
address shareholders’ queries. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual directors.
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During the year under review, one general meeting of the Company
was held. Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code provides that the
chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting.
It was noted that the chairman of the Board and the Nomination
Committee, Ms. Lo Fong Hung was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2014 due to
other business commitments.

The 2015 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 25
August 2015. A notice of annual general meeting will be sent to the
shareholders of the Company at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting.

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition sent to the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. The written requisition must state the purposes
of the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s) concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more of those shareholders. If the requisition is in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to
all the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
invalid, the shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened as requested.
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Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100 shareholders, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be moved
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a particular
general meeting. The written request/statements must be signed
by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the Company’s
registered office and its principal office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary, not less than six weeks before the AGM
in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any
other requisition. If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board (j) to include the resolution in the agenda
for the AGM; or (i) to circulate the statement for the general meeting,
provided that the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a sum
of money reasonably determined by the Board sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the shareholder(s)
concerned in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid
or the Shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes
the shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in the
agenda for the AGM or the statement will not be circulated for the
general meeting.
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Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their AR & & H {th KA BRI 25 & A] A (0] B R
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the BES7EANHESZTS 2B TSTEIUE
Company Secretary by post, fax or email. The contact details are set % « BEK B 7 A NELE R TIWE - B

out as below:

Registered office:

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

REMESIT

EEaliE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

Principal place of Suites 1003-1006, BEBETELE BHEEESSH
business in 10/F., Two Pacific Place, B Kb ES ZE10E
Hong Kong: 88 Queensway, Hong Kong 1003£1006Z%

Postal address: Suites 1003-10086, AL BB EBE88

10/F., Two Pacific Place, K& — 1068
88 Queensway, Hong Kong 1003£ 1006

Tel: 2248 0188 B 2248 0188

Fax: 2918 9931 BE 2918 9931

Email: info@nannanlisted.com FHE - info@nannanlisted.com

During the year under review, there were no change in the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.
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The directors of the Company present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
mining and sales of coal.

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 158. The
directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements is set out on pages
159 to 160 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in notes 26(b) and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Details of the convertible bond issued by the Company during the
year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company shared office
premises with its immediate holding company China Sonangol
International Limited and paid HK$675,000 during the year (2014:
HK$615,000). In the opinion of the Board, the sharing of the office
premises is on a fair and equitable cost allocation basis which is
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements as set out in Rule
14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan* and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan*#

Pursuant to the instructions from the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang
Land Department”) had to plan for a management restructuring of
seven different coal mines (including the Zexu Mine) in the Xiheishan
Mining Area (the “Optimization and Upgrading Plan”), consolidating
some smaller mines together so as to increase the size efficiency
(for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2011). After being informed of this Optimization and
Upgrading Plan, the Board has requested our management in
Xinjiang to conduct frequent meetings and negotiations with the
Xinjiang Land Department and other relevant government authorities
in order to protect the Company’s interest in relation to the
exploration permit of the Zexu Mine (the “Exploration Permit”).

According to the letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Administrative Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the
“Changji Administrative Bureau”) informing the updated status
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the following proposals
(the “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan”) in relation to the
Company’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine have been submitted to
the working group head office for coal industry structural upgrade
work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region for consideration and
approval:

1.  The Company’s Kaiyuan Mine would be restructured and
upgraded, and the exploration right in the Zexu Mine granted
to the Company would be terminated; and

2. The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Company
is now conducting mining activities, was proposed to be
increased from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12 square
kilometers, with the estimated coal resources of approximately
131.18 million tonnes.
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Progress of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan# and the
Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan* (continued)

As at the date hereof, the Company has still not yet received any
written notification from the relevant Xinjiang government department
in respect of the approval of the Updated Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2014,
the Exploration Permit of the Zexu Mine of the Company originally
expired on 20 February 2014. Concerned that the Company’s
position and rights in the Optimization and Upgrading Plan might be
compromised since the Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan
had still not then been approved by the Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region Government, the Company through its Xinjiang staff has
continued to make informal representations to Chinese officials
urging them to exercise administrative discretion to renew the
Exploration Permit despite the fact that the Company had earlier
obtained a PRC legal opinion advising the Company no further
renewal beyond 20 February 2014 could be obtained for Zexu Mine
Exploration Permit. Eventually, on 19 March 2014, the Company
obtained a renewal permit from Xinjiang Land Department granting
the renewal of the Exploration Permit from 25 February 2014 to 25
February 2016.

# “Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Management Restructuring Plan” in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 November 2011 and in the announcements, notices, circulars,
interim reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.

i “Updated Optimization and Upgrading Plan” was previously referred to as
“Updated Restructuring Proposals” in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 June 2012 and in the announcements, notices, circulars, interim
reports and annual reports of the Company thereafter.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statements of changes in equity
respectively.

At 31 March 2015, the Company had no retained profits available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus of
HK$128,013,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account with a balance of
HK$191,534,000 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 68.44% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 27.37%.
Purchases of goods and services from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 96.21% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
10 40.91%.
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The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Lo Fong Hung (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wang Xiangfei

Kwan Man Fai

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Man Hin, Raymond

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey

Xu Xiao Sheng (appointed on 14 July 2014)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Wang Xiangfei, Mr. Kwan Man Fai and Mr. Wong Man Hin, Raymond
will retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to 16 of the
annual report.

No director of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment other than statutory compensation.

No director of the Company had a significant beneficial interest,
either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party at any time during the year ended 31 March 2015.
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As at 31 March 2015, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers were as follows:

Long position
Interests in an associated corporation of the Company

R-F-—RE=ZA=1+—8 ARAEEK
ITETBRABRARRSEMEBEE(EE
REFLBMEGRD([EH RG] E
XVER) Z D - A AR RIRIRE 5 M A
B GRPIFEI521EBC X IGFTEE M 2 #
@ ARBEMBETAESETESRSLZ
RESTRIZASITHME AR R MBI R P2
LI

jiir

N

WA
NN iE)c Nl

Approximate
percentage

Number of the issued
of shares share capital

Name of interested HE&T
Name of Directors associated corporation Nature of interest EEEEZ AL
EENS HEEEERE ERME ik €| Bak
Ms. Lo Fong Hung (Note 1) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%
BHILE (MisE1) Development Limited corporation

AERRERAR AR  RIEHIABR R
Mr. Wang Xiangfei (Note 2) New Bright International  Interests of controlled 3,000 (L) 30%

TAREE (KiFE2) Development Limited corporation
AERRBERAR AR SEHAE R

L denotes as long position

L  EEHAE
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Notes:

1. Ms. Lo Fong Hung (“Ms. Lo”") is interested in 3,000 shares in New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), representing 30% of the
issued share capital of New Bright, which currently owns 70% shareholding
interests in China Sonangol International Limited (“China Sonangol”). China
Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal Investments Limited
(“Ascent Goal”), and the controlling shareholder of the Company. The
shareholding interests of Ascent Goal in the Company is set out in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders” of this report.

2. Mr. Wang Xiangfei is the husband of Ms. Lo and is deemed to be interested
in 3,000 shares of New Bright under the SFO.

3. Ms. Lo, an executive director of the Company, owns 30% of the issued
share capital of New Bright which in turn is interested in 70% of China
Sonangol. China Sonangol is the holding company of Ascent Goal. Thus, Ms.
Lo has an attributable interest in 569,616,589 shares of the Company and a
HK$200,000,000 convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000
underlying shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed under note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
showed that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executives, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of the relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.
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Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Shareholders

RRER

Ascent Goal

China Sonangol

TR

New Bright
gl

Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica
Jidik Y

Africa Israel Investments Ltd

Mr. Lev Leviev
Lev Levievit &

Notes

W&t

1,4

2,4

2,4

3,4

Nature of interest

BEME

Beneficial owner

ESBBA

Interests of controlled
corporation
AR 2w

Interests of controlled
corporation
RS AR R

Interests of controlled
corporation
AR R

Beneficial owner

ESBBA

i

\

Beneficial owner

i
Bl

b
ant
>

Interests of controlled
corporation

REGZE Ea

Number of
shares held

iR pnBE

569,616,589

569,616,589

569,616,589

569,616,589

45,000,000

1,000,000

74,000,000

RARBRGSERRMD ZFE

Number of
underlying
shares held
igT il
ROYE

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Approximate

percentage

of the

issued share

capital of

Total number the Company

of shares (Note 6)

and underlying E N

sharesheld BBITRA

FERHGE  HBOEIL

HEROAH (FitzE6)

1,569,616,589 205.08%

1,569,616,589 205.08%

1,569,616,589 205.08%

1,569,616,589 205.08%

45,000,000 5.88%

1,000,000 0.13%

74,000,000 9.67%
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Long positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

1. Ascent Goal was directly interested in 569,616,589 shares and a further
1,000,000,000 underlying shares which may be fully allotted and issued
if the convertible bond are converted at the conversion price of HK$0.20
per share. These 1,569,616,589 shares were held by Ascent Goal directly
as beneficial owner. It includes (i) interests in 569,616,589 shares and (i)
the convertible bond giving rise to an interest in 1,000,000,000 underlying
shares.

2. Since Ascent Goal is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Sonangol which
is beneficially owned as to 70% by New Bright, the interests of Ascent Goal
is deemed to be the interests of China Sonangol and in turn the interests of
New Bright under the SFO.

& Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica is deemed to have interests in the shares
and underlying shares through her 70% interest in New Bright.

4. The 569,616,589 shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares under the
convertible bond represent 74.42% and 130.66% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company respectively, thus the total of 569,616,589
shares and 1,000,000,000 underlying shares represent 205.08% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company. The conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bond will not be exercised and the Company
will not issue the conversion shares if, immediately following the conversion,
the Company would be unable to meet the public float requirement under
the Listing Rules.

5, For the shares held by Mr. Lev Leviev, of these shares, 45,000,000 shares
were held by Africa Israel Investments Ltd, a company controlled by Mr.
Lev Leviev through his 74.89% interests in Africa Israel Investments Ltd;
29,000,000 shares were held by Memorand Management (1998) Ltd,
a company controlled by Mr. Lev Leviev through his 99% interests in
Memorand Ltd.; and 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Lev Leviev directly.

6. The approximate percentage of shareholdings is based on 765,373,584
shares as at 31 March 2015, not the enlarged issued share capital of the
Company upon full conversion of the convertible bond.

No director of the Company had interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules, during the
year and up to the date of this report.
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As at the date of this report, based on the information publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors
of the Company, over 25% of the issued share capital of the
Company is held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as auditor of the
Company in 2011 upon the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On Behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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A\ Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nan Nan
Resources Enterprise Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 44 to 158, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

EEE5E (B8 SMEHMERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

B IRET TR SR 0912
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Betty P.C. Tse

Practising Certificate Number P0O3024

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_Z-AF=B=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—B-HF =Tl
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FTHET FAT
Turnover R 6 124,463 123,100
Cost of sales SHE AR (69,297) (100,836)
Gross profit EA 55,166 22 264
Other revenue HAnlzs 7 11,016 3,403
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (743) (774)
Administrative and T R H AL E B A
other operating expenses (19,989) (23,491)
Change in fair value of convertible bond ~ AJ#fREH 2 A FEEE 27 (38,970) (15,373)
Change in fair value of structured deposit &I IEGFER 2 A FEEE 23 656 -
Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATLRF](EE) 7,136 (13,971)
Income tax (expense)/credit e (ZH), e 9 (12,655) 515
Loss for the year FREIE 10 (5,519) (13,456)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2wl A
ltems that may be reclassified HigrgeEFnEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange difference on translation BRENREEBRZE
of functional currency to ke 2 [ R
presentation currency 177 3,235
Other comprehensive income FAREMEERA @ kK
for the year, net of nil tax ZHIE 177 3,235
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZHEEBERE (5,342) (10,221)
Loss for the year attributable to: AR AT EEEAEE :
— Owners of the Company —ANARIEA A (5,519) (13,456)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ATATEIEFAZEE
attributable to: BB -
— Owners of the Company AYNEIE 2PN (5,342) (10,221)
Loss per share GREE
(expressed in Hong Kong cents) (BABILZEZ)
— Basic —HA 13 0.72) (1.76)
— Diluted — s 13 (0.72) (1.76)

FIEN £ 52 168 B Z M i A% T M 53R
wZ—#D o

The notes on pages 52 to 158 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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As at 31 March 2015
R=ZB-—AF=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Security deposit

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Structured deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
s - B R
R AR
e
RERS

RBEE

TE

FE U TR N A P U
IR

BT
ReMReFERER

REAE
FEN R R A AL
IR

FENTHIR

REBEEFE

REERRBRE

Notes

B aE

15
16
17
18

20
21

23
24

25

2015
—E-AF
HK$’000
FExT

21,862
63,746

4,010
89,618
20,481

3,069

27,923
334,151

385,624

51,680
9,397
(61,077)
324,547

414,165

Annual Report

2014
—E-F
HK$’000
FET

22,196
73,242

3,645

99,083
13,600
1,805

319,460
334,865

49,616
2,397
(62,013)
282,852

381,935
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %= & B #& iR R 3%

Asat 31 March 2015
R-ZEB-HAF=A=+—H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Provision for close down, restoration
and environmental costs
Deferred tax liabilities

MRAS Ktk
EEEN
8

ROFER AR ER

FRBEE

HBE RIE A THESBRIL
HERENERIEZ &R’
BEZAJBEES
BAR - EERIREARA
&

EREHRARE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

June 2015.

On behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung
BIA

Director

EF

The notes on pages 52 to 158 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Notes

B aE

26

27

28
29

2015
—E-AF
HK$’000
FExT

76,537
82,274

158,811

244,201

2,762
8,391

255,354

414,165

2014
—E—-UF
HK$’000
FHT

76,537
87,616

164,153

205,231

1,996
10,555

217,782

381,935

R-ZE—AFA-+=HhEEeER

FEARTIFE -

RREFS

Wang Xiangfei
IR
Director

EZE

SIEN HE52E 158 B Z i iE B A% T M 53R

RLZ—BD °
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As at 31 March 2015
R=ZB-—AF=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables
Structured deposit
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total Equity

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bond designated as
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23

June 2015.

On behalf of the Board

Lo Fong Hung

EBHAL
Director

EF

The notes on pages 52 to 158 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Notes
M5
ERBEE
YE - BB NERE 15
RHB AR ZIE 19
REBEE
FEULBH B A A E 19
H e Y GRIE 21
KRB IETER 23

ReMREEEERR 24

REas
HAib e RUE R ER
E=33! 25

RBEEFE

REERRBRE

B #E
&N 26
] 26

s

FREBEE

EEABRATENIERLT
EEHFANREZ SR
BEZ A RRES 27

2015
—E-hF
HK$’000
TR

278

278

153,765
434
27,923
156,736

338,858

1,670
(1,670)

337,188

337,466

76,537
16,728

93,265

244,201

337,466

BARETIE -

RERE=FS

Wang Xiangfei
TR
Director

EF

RZ—8D -

Annual Report

2014

—F—qF

HK$'000
THTT

740

740

163,747
227

192,047
346,021

1,407
(1,407)

344,614

345,354

76,5637
63,586

140,123

205,231

345,354

R-B-—RAFRNAT=EHEFSHER

SIEN £ 62 E 158 B Z i iE A &% T M 53R

ik 47



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT-OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-—AF=ZA=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREARL
Exchange
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory translation Special Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total
B BOEE  EARE iR ERGR  RERG RaER #g
(note 26 a())  (note 26 (i) (note 26 afii)) (note 26 afiv))  (note 26 afv)
(k26 2) (FizEo6ali) (Wiko6afi) (Fis6ap) (FiE26a()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL T TAL T TiErn TAL T
At 1 April 2013 RZE2-=£mA-A 76,537 191,634 14,882 9,485 15,130 27,143 (160,337) 174,374
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (13,456) (13,456)
Bxchange differenceon BT EE 2SS
translation of functional B2 E £
currency to presentation
currency - - - - 3,285 - - 3,285
Total other comprehensive  £RE 2 ERALE
income for the year - - - - 3,235 - - 3,235
Total comprehensive loss ~ FRZEEREE
for the year - - - - 3,235 - (13,456) (10,221)
Transfer B4 = = = 376 = = (376) =
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME
=B=1-H 76,587 191,534 14,882 9,861 18,365 27,143 (174,169) 164,153
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &4 8 g &k

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREARL
Exchange
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory translation Special Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserves reserve reserve losses Total

Ra  RGBE  EARE AERE  ERRE KRG EAEE a8
(note 26 afi)  (note 26 afil) (note 26 afii)) (note 26 afiv))  (note 26 afv)
GEZERGEZEMGEZE (RGEZE RCEZE )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TR TAL TEL

At1 April 2014 R-E-MEmNA—A 76,637 191,534 14,882 9,861 18,365 27,143 (174,169) 164,153
Loss for the year FREE = = = = = = (5,519) (5,519)

Exchange differenceon BB EEA2T|E
tranglation of functional B EHEE
currency to presentation

currency - - = - 177 = - 177
Total other comprehensive  FRE M2 EMA L
income for the year - - - - 177 - - 177

Total comprehensive loss ~ ER2 I RAE

for the year - - - - 177 - (5,519) (6,342)
Transfer B - - - 2,102 - - 2,102) -
Appropriation of maintenance %% R £EE S 7 HE

and production funds - - - 31,310 - - (31,310) -
Utiisation of maintenance  #f A EES 78R

and production funds - - - (31,007) - - 31,007 -
At 31 March 2015 W=E-1%

=A=1-H 76,637 191,534 14,882 12,266 18,542 27,143 (182,093) 158,811

The notes on pages 52 to 158 form an integral part of these financial 7| #E A FE52FE 1588 7 M sE i Ak 5% S B 75 4R
statements. RZ—HEH ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-RE=RA=+—-HLFE

Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
which was included in cost of
inventories sold

Reversal of write down of inventories

Provision for close down, restoration
and environmental cost

Change in fair value of structured
deposit

Change in fair value of convertible
bond designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net exchange (gain)/loss

Interest income

Operating cash flow before movements
in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other

receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

RERE
BREtATE A, (E51R)
gL M5B B (A

ME - BELREBITE

BVEE#EGIABHE
FERKA)

TFEHUR =
FAR - B RIRIBA AR

IR DT ERE

EE AR A AR A B
WF@Zﬂ@%%#Z@$

ﬁ%%%‘@%&&ﬁZ%ﬁ

BE R (Weas) /iR 3 AR
MEWA

LEEESRBACKERIRE

ER (),

PN 3 A M R (42
o),/

P 55 % EL AR R

REXBRERE

BT

REXBMEREFH
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2015
—E—FHF
HK$’000
TExT

7,136

4,742

5,497

(1,997)

(656)

38,970
4

(741)
(5,277)
47,678
(2,503)

(1,261)
1,981

45,895

(7,844)

38,051

2014
—mE
HK$’000
TET

(13,971)

4,612

(1,877)

15,373
116
197

(3,209)
1,141

57,763

1,188
10,587

70,679

(5,147)

65,532



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z4E S haxk
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-—T-AF=HA=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—B-RF —ZE-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Investing activities REEK
Additions of property, plant and INBEWME - BE K&
equipment (1,616) (6,652)
Placement of structured deposit FEEBIETR (27,267) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BEMEREMEHIE
plant and equipment = 446
Interest received B UF 8 5,277 3,209
Increase in security deposit REBIES 1NN (359) (771)
Net cash used in investing activities REEKFARSTHE (23,965) (2,768)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRRESEHEER ZEMFHE
equivalents 14,086 62,764
Cash and cash equivalents at FHOzHReRESEHEER
beginning of year 319,460 255,620
Effect on foreign exchange EREE
rate changes 605 1,076
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRZEERBESEEEER » U9
year, represented by bank balances BRTHEERRS
and cash 334,151 319,460

The notes on pages 52 to 158 form an integral part of these financial ~ ZIE R E52E 158 B 2 K sE i A 5% =5 B 15 7R
statements. *T 5 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_Z-AF=B=+—HLEE

52

Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s parent company is
Ascent Goal Investments Limited (“Ascent Goal”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and the Group’s ultimate holding company is New Bright
International Development Limited (“New Bright”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Its ultimate
controlling party is Ms. Fung Yuen Kwan, Veronica.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) for the convenience of the shareholders as
the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
subsidiaries of the Company are principally engaged in mining
and sales of coal.

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Recoverable Amount Disclosures

for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39  Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(FRIC) - Int 21 Levies

NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED @& REXBRAE

HEEREEZEERAR(ARRA DR
BREGFMKLA—RAZHREZER
DA ARBBRDEBRBBEA X DM
BRAR([BRPT]) EH - EFR
B AEEZBRABRRNEBRE LR
SRMRLZERARERERERR
REI([ER]) - MAKEZ &K
ARABNEBEMKILZBER AR
AIERRERERAR(TANE]) - H
RASAES T RIBE R L -

ARREMPERLTELEME 2
AR FERZ AT ER P HE -

ARBZNEEE/RARE(TAR
%1 o BRARRREFELT * BT
BRER  ZAPBHERRABT(E
TTEF -

ARABREERAT - KRAEZH
BRRZ TEXBRERARIIFE -

RAFER AEEEERAATHES
SETED DG PR HTA] RS ERT &
BB HRELE([EEHHREE
EURDR

FEWHRELEN KREERE
F£105% - BEY
BrEERIE12
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BIZE27SRIEET AR
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BAEGEER TRIBEENSRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % 3z 3= M &

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which for this
financial year and the comparative period, as permitted by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

RAFRERAMF REEFTREMH
WEEL EHAEERNAFE B
EFE M BRBEER R RS EHR
ZERAMBHRRZBBEEREMNE
FE  AEBYVEEANASEH
A 1R R A B2 (AR ¥ R ] B RISk A2 o

BETERITAEZAFEFEN &
BRI & TS B A R A
BELRAEERE - BRASBORE
AT o LA —RIZE fn K AR HS
R TREZAFERE -

RAEVBBRREREEESFIMAE
M2 EEHBREERBE - It
S MEMBHREFBEEHRARS
BERARES LMRREBEAF
R0 (BLASBA BRF 2 I SR AR ) = 47D
RARRIGRDI(FEI2E) - WEREK
BRZGMERRAES EHRARA)
MEZBEREESE

a) HFERBEEE
REMBREBEANAF REE
HleEE(BREREER) X

HITB AR 2 HBHE - BEAR

EE

o  HREEHBIRERR

. ESRERAXNTEBM
el DIEETN e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

a)

54 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &REZRRAT

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % 3z 3= M &

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

a)

b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1
April 2010

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition
were generally recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the recognised amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the recognised
amount of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the acquisition,
the excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the minority interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amount of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

a)

b)

RERBEEEHE)
FEERBRENBLAR ZERR
ES2E(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

c)

d)

56 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &REZERRAT

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated
to a cash-generating unit was acquired in a business
combination during the current annual period, that unit
shall be tested for impairment before the end of the
current annual period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(l)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses and is amortised
based on the units of production method utilising only
recoverable coal reserves as the depletion base.

Exploration right

Exploration right is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost of the exploration right is transferred to mining right
upon the government’s approval of the mining license
and the commencement of the mining activities.
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58 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B#&REZERRAT

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation activity involves the search
for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of
an identified resource.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs
which are directly attributable to:

- research and analysing historical exploration data;

- gathering exploration data through topographical,
geochemical and geophysical studies;

- exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;

= determining and examining the volume and grade
of the resource;

- surveying transportation and infrastructure
requirements; and

- conducting market and finance studies

Expenditure during the initial exploration stage of
a project is charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Exploration and
evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licenses,
are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets on
a project-by-project basis pending determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project.

The capitalised costs are presented as either tangible or
intangible exploration and evaluation assets according
to the nature of the assets. Tangible and intangible
exploration and evaluation assets that are available for use
are depreciated/amortised over their useful lives. When a
project is abandoned, the related irrecoverable costs are
written off to profit or loss immediately.
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9)

h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and building held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any
(see note 3(l).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL.
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h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° It has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “change
in fair value of structured deposit” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in note 5.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including
security deposit, trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group
entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Equity instruments (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

= the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
permits the entire combined contract (assets or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial
liability and is included in the “change in fair value of
convertible bond” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 5.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables is subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Convertible bond
Convertible bond designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL

Convertible bond issued by the Group (including related
embedded derivatives) is designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the entire convertible bond is measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognsied in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognsied and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for close down, restoration and
environmental costs

One consequence of coal mining is land subsidence
caused by the resettlement of the land at the mining
sites. Depending on the circumstances, the Group
may relocate inhabitants from the mining sites prior
to conducting mining activities or the Group may
compensate the inhabitants for losses or damage from
close down and land subsidence after the sites have
been mined. The Group may also be required to make
payments for restoration, rehabilitation or environmental
protection of the land after the sites have been mined.

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling
and demolition of infrastructure and the removal of
residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas.
Close down and restoration costs are provided in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the
related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during
mine development or during the production phase,
based on the net present value of estimated future
costs. The cost is capitalised where it gives rise to future
benefits, whether the rehabilitation activity is expected to
occur over the life of the operation or at the time of close
down. The capitalised cost is amortised over the life of
the operation and the increase in the net present value of
the provision is included in borrowing costs.
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RF=ZA=+—HLFE

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and
environmental costs (continued)

Where there is a change in the expected
decommissioning and restoration costs, an adjustment
is recorded against the carrying value of the provision
and related assets, and the effect is then recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a prospective basis
over the remaining life of the operation. Provisions for
close down and restoration costs do not include any
additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The cost estimates are reviewed
and revised at the end of the reporting period to reflect
changes in conditions.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables
Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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)] Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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1)

Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

i)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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1)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

i)

ii)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and

evaluation assets is reviewed at least annually
and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Impairment test is performed in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
whenever one of the following events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

The period for which the entity has the right
to explore in the specific area has expired
during the period or will expire in the near
future, and is not expected to be renewed;

Substantive expenditure on further
exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;
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)] Impairment of assets (continued)
i)  Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

(continued)

- Exploration for and evaluation of mineral
resources in the specific area have not led
to the discovery of commercially viable
quantities of mineral resources and the entity
has decided to discontinue such activities in
the specific area; or

- Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although
a development in the specific area is likely
to proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely
to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

m) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.
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Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Share-based payment

Share options granted by the Company to directors
and employees of the Company

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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0)
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Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

0)

Fris#t
FREHEENET IR R
ERBREERAE2ZE - A
MIBAMREFRAEENBEZ
HE N BEER - R EAER
BRASREEN EREREES
FAZHBRRIN  EUBERT - B
HeBRSBRAUDHNEMEE
WA B R TR o

D348 T PO R B L
s RO B A R ER
B A2 B 5T 3 2 FRHATR
A B R BE 2
A -

EEFBEEERBEDRIKAR
R ERRE R 5 - BIEE
REBERAHRERBOMES 2
FREEEMERZZ/ o BT
THEETRE R ERRBERR
RERBIRER

BRETAERGIIMEN - FIAEL
MAABLRABELERREE
(VAR PR FE SR B g K| ] BEFE X B
ETBAERR) G T AR -
FIRE B PASTFFREREE 4 B P AR
ERERIELERBAEEZIRK
ERBEA - BIEEEDEARE
R ERERMEL 2S5 I
% AR B IR — TR &
F—ERHERAR  BEEE
TAEH R R AR E R R 2 R —
MR SRR IR B EFTE A 2 i
TSE R Al T 3 O S A 88 2 HAR A
o - EETREERNE R £
BRD RAFFRER B ARERAR
BEBERERAEL 2 BEHREA
BER - TeRAR—E - A
AT R — RSB K F — &
RRERAHEERE  URRE
REEAB B ER SRR 2 HIFEA
Bm o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % 3z 3= M &

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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0)

p)
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Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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p)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the
cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

= exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and

= exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributing
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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9)]

q)
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Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e., a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation
to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease; and
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q) Leased assets (continued)

i)

i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 3(g). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 3(l). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to
profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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q) Leased assets (continued)

ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment property.

r) Employee benefits

i)

i)

82 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &REZRRAT

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are carried at
their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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s)

t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;

ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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BE-Z—

t)
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Related parties (continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

)

i)

Vi)

vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s executive directors for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Reserve estimates

Reserves are estimates of the amount of products that can
be economically and legally extracted from the Group’s
coal reserves. In order to calculate reserves, estimates and
assumptions are required about a range of geological, technical
and economic factors, including quantities, grades, production
techniques, recovery rates, production costs, transport costs,
commodity demand and commaodity prices. Estimating the
quantity and/or grade of reserves requires the size, shape and
depth of ore bodies or fields to be determined by analysing
geological data such as drilling samples. This process may
require complex and difficult geological judgements and
calculations to interpret the data.

Because the economic assumptions used to estimate reserves
change from period to period, and because additional
geological data is generated during the course of operations,
estimates of reserves may change from period to period.
Changes in reported reserves may affect the Group’s financial
results and financial position in a number of ways, including the
following:

i) Asset carrying values may be affected due to changes in
estimated future cash flows.

ii) Depreciation, depletion and amortisation charged to
the profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined by the units of production basis, or where the
useful economic lives of assets change.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Reserve estimates (continued)

if) Decommissioning, site restoration and environmental
provisions may change where changes in estimated
reserves affect expectations about the timing or cost of
these activities.

iv)  The carrying value of deferred tax may change as a result
of changes in the asset carrying values as discussed
above.

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (excluding exploration and evaluation assets classified
as intangible assets) are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses,
where appropriate. These carrying amounts are reviewed
for impairment whenever internal and external sources of
information indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In estimating
the recoverable amounts of assets, various assumptions,
including future cash flows to be associated with the non-
current assets and discount rates, are made. If future events
do not correspond to such assumptions, the recoverable
amounts will need to be revised, and this may have an impact
on the Group’s results of operations or financial position.
The impairment assessment of the Group’s mining right and
exploration and evaluation assets included in intangible assets is
further discussed below.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of mining right and exploration and evaluation
assets

The Group assesses each cash generating unit annually to
determine whether any indication of impairment exists, which
included internal and external sources of information for
mining right, and facts and circumstances for exploration and
evaluation assets. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
a formal estimate of the recoverable amount is made, which
is considered to be the higher of the fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. These assessments require the use
of estimates and assumptions such as long-term commodity
prices, discount rates, future capital requirements, exploration
potential and operating performance. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices are not
readily available. In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which require significant judgement and estimates such
as sale volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
Management has assessed its cash generating units as being
an individual mine site, which is the lowest level for which cash
flows are largely independent of other assets.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The Directors have to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The financial controller
and/or assistant financial controller work closely with the
qualified external valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model, and report to executive
directors semi-annually to explain the cause of fluctuation in
the fair value of the financial instruments.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 5 provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
various assets and liabilities.

Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Write down of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging analysis of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for use in production or
sales. The management estimates the net realisable value for
consumables and coals based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a item-by-item basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
items. During the year ended 31 March 2015, no write-down
or reversal of write-down of inventories (2014 a reversal of
write-down of HK$1,877,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$20,481,000 (2014: HK$13,600,000).
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
costs is determined by management based on their past
experience and best estimation of future expenditures, after
taking into account existing relevant PRC regulations. However,
in so far as the effect on the land and the environment from
current mining activities becomes apparent in future years, the
estimate of the associated costs may be subject to revision
from time to time. Details of the Group’s provision for close
down, restoration and environmental costs are set out in note
28.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets which arose
from deductible temporary differences as set out in note 29.
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends
on whether it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available against which the
assets can be utilised. In cases where the actual future taxable
profits or taxable temporary differences generated are less
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which will be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such reversal takes place. As at 31 March 2015, the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is HK$7,546,000 (2014:
HK$7,756,000).

90 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &REZRRAT
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a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments a) &RITEE
The Group The Company
AEH b /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RE —T-NF ZE-RF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT FET FHT
Financial assets HAFERRLE
designated at BaNREL
FVTPL ETeREE 27,923 - 27,923 =
Loans and receivables & 5% f JE U 718
(including cash and (PEHE2R
cash equivalents) BeEEER) 341,103 324,743 310,629 345,852
Financial liabilities at HE B HEK AT =
amortised cost ZERBE 14,129 8,158 1,670 -~
Financial liabilities BATHESBRIE
designated at FVTPL 1B AR~
EETe®BE 244,201 205,231 244,201 205,231
Financial risk management objectives and policies b) WMHERREEBERBER

The Group’s major financial instruments include security
deposit, trade and other receivables, structured deposit,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and
convertible bond. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

i) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency expenditures, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

AEEZ TR T ABRERE
BE - USSR E A YR
H - EREESR  ReERREF
B1RA - BNEREEAMEN K
TRAR AR E SR - AT EmT
B BN SRR TN - 82
FeRTARBZRARBETS
Rz (8RR - N =E RN E
RER)  EEREBERBES
R o anfalPRE L SRR 2 AR
FRTX - EEEEEMEEZ
FER - AR M EA B
HUEE R -

) EEER
KARETHEB AR AN
B - SANEBAZIN
R o AEE I EIM
HNEE SRR o AT 0 B
BEERIINERR - W
EREREEEIREARIN
MR o

Annual Report £k 91



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

92 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZARAT

Currency risk (continued)

Certain receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
payables, and structured deposit and convertible
bond of the Group and the Company are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity to which they relate.

The following table shows the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate.

Assets BE
Liabilities Bf&E
Assets BE
Liabilities afE

b)

A R R EE B R REUR ()

&k (4]
AEBRAKRRZETE
WikR - RekReEE
HE - BNFEREEE
ff R Ko AT R AR 1B 257 19 IA R
SEERZAENEEE
SNz EREEHE -

NRBRAEERARRF]
PSR & B 4 R A A £ B
RARBERINETE A
S EBBFECEESR
BEE SRR -

The Group

HeEE
2015 2014
—E-AfF e S ppusfes
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
136,978 192,274
245,871 205,231

The Company

b /N
2015 2014
—EB-AfF —ZE—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
338,552 345,852
245,871 205,231
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b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk of HK$.

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and
decrease in HK$ against each group entity’s
functional currency. 5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A negative number below indicates
an increase in loss for the year and accumulated
losses of the Group, decrease in loss for the year
and accumulated losses of the Company (2014
increase in loss for the year and accumulated
losses of the Group, decrease in loss for the year
and accumulated losses of the Company) where
each group entity’s functional currency weaken
5% (2014: 5%) against HK$. For a 5% (2014: 5%)
strengthening of each group entity’s functional
currency against HKS, there would be an equal and
opposite impact.

b) MBERKREEBERREKE)

The Group
TEE
2015 2014
—E—FEF —gE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Profit or loss and v 1| 2k S 1R K
accumulated losses 2 EH/E1E (6,840) (718)

LR (4E)
HREFE AT
AEBERTEAIET
ZHINE RS o

TRFANAEBE B
TTASAEBERE 24
B ZERF YRR (ZF
— DU 5%) ZHRSE o
5%(ZZT—MF : 5%) 5
MEBEEABRPER
HNEE LB BT 2 SRR L
K WIREIEEHINEE
KA e B EE) 2 7T -
BRE 7 AT 12 B 38 DA SN
SHEZAEBESE®EE -
WFINEER 2 5% ( —F
— PO 4 5%)“§buﬂ¥EA
FRZBE - EEAEH
E%ZW%%M%%%%
BE5%( —ZF—MF : 5%)
B TREZBERLEE
FAEE R RFTEEE M
RARBEANEBIER R
EERD (T4 K
EEFRNEBBEREER
R AR B FE A EIE K
BETEBRD) - MER
El?@ZW%EME%
TTHES% (=T — P4 :
&@*M%WéﬁﬁﬁL
MEERZFE -

B

The Company
/N

2015 2014
—B-HFE _—T0OF

HK$000  HK$'000
TET TAET
3,238 6,961
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b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

i)

94  NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZARAT

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank balances and security deposit
carried at prevailing market rate. The Group has
not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not
formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2015 and accumulated losses as at the reporting
date would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,691,000 (2014: HK$1,616,000), and the
Company’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2015 and accumulated losses as at the reporting
date would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$784,000 (decrease/increase the Company’s
loss of the year ended 31 March 2014 and
decrease/increase in the Company’s accumulated
losses by approximately HK$960,000 as at 31
March 2014). This was mainly attributable to the
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
balances of the Group and of the Company.

b)

B EREE B R REBR(E)

i)

= kg
AEBAAZGAUAER
MISH R R ZRITHETF
RREEE RS RER
KRR o ANEH I EER
EAIPTEA K E P E =
[\ o 7N 5= B 48 11| 7E R
REBEMNKRER -

BT

TR ZBRE D TIRIE
FEOTET ANKE M
R 2 FIRRBRETE -
SO ERR N RS A
BREZAEBESHRTA
REEFEHREE

M= _EF8, T B50MEE

N RAIAREEHET
—HE=A=+—HItF
EZERENRERH
2EEEER D MY
1,691,000/ 70 ( =& — Y
& : 1,616,000/ 7C) * 1M
ARABEHEZT—HF=
A=+—RHLEFEZEIE
FRRE BBz REHE1E
L1 hn#I784,00078
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b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

ii)

Equity price risk

The Group was required to estimate the fair value
of the convertible bond (see note 27) at the end of
the reporting period with changes in fair value to
be recognised in the profit or loss. The fair value
adjustment would be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the
Company’s share market price.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Company’s
share price risk at the reporting date only. If the
Company’s share price had been 5% higher and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
and the Company’s post-tax loss for the year
(as a result of changes in fair value of convertible
bond) would increase and accumulated losses
would increase by approximately HK$6,175,000
(2014 the Group’s post-tax loss for the year would
increase and accumulated loss would increase and
the Company’s post-tax loss for the year would
increase and accumulated losses would increase
by approximately HK$7,458,000). If the input of
share price to the valuation model of the derivatives
embedded in the convertible bond had been 5%
lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s and the Company’s post-tax loss
for the year (as a result of changes in fair value of
convertible bond) would decrease and accumulated
losses would decrease by approximately
HK$6,743,000 (2014: the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year would decrease and accumulated losses
would decrease and the Company’s post-tax loss
would decrease and accumulated losses would
decrease by approximately HK$7,957,000).

b)

B EREE B R RBR(E)

i)

PR A B E B
AEBANRE HRE
R Al E 7 (LM
27) 2 AFHE - WRERA
ERERFEZS - 2F
EFARKZ (AR ERE)R
RERDHEZES 2R
BASIEZ -

SRS T
TSR E DT ERBER
WEBHAS Z AR A
MEERBETE - WARQA
RE(E EFH5% » M FTa Eith
BEHFETE  AARKE
EARRZBBEFNE
BORERRBRESZA
FEES) LT MBHE
1B 1518 11 496,175,000 7T
ZE—UF  AEE 2K
e FAEESIE MR
FTET B IG I - A R)BR
e FAREZE MR
ST 188 3 A1 497,458,000
EIT) o WAl R ESFAS
PTETEFERAEBEZ
RRE 8 A SR A5% + M
FrE A & g iF 1
BIAREE RAR R 2B
BERNEE(TRE A #®
BEHFZAFEEE)
AT RETEEK T A
6,743,000 L (= Z — Y
FAEBZBRBREBEFA
E B R A M R E 18
W RNABBRB & EE
18R A T 2 51 B 18 15 IRl >
#97,957,000/87T) °
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b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

iv)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group and the Company can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

Liquidity risk table
The Group
Within
1 year
oron
demand
—ERg
EZX
HK$'000
FiEn
31 March 2015 “E-5E=B=t-H
Trade and other payables ENERRAMERFE 14,129
Convertible bond designated as 65 AR A TE5I%
financial liabilties at FVTPL VEREREEY
sRBEERES -
14,129

96 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED Bi&REZARAT

b)

More than

1 year

but less than
2 years
BE-F
BORME
HK$'000
TiERL

200,000

200,000

B EREE B R REBR(E)

iv)

RBEEER

RERRBDESRARM
B AREEERERR
ERAEEEBEENEE
BRR/EHZNKFE - B
SEEBREES - WH
BRERENB < FE -

TERHEBAEERARF]
SRABRGAOIEA
ZHIE - AR RRER
AREERA R BERE
KR RPHHZE R
BERIOAMBRSRE
w3 - JIREENERE

TEIE A 2
E2WREME °

BEEERSF
E
2 years Total
to undiscounted Carrying
5years  cash flows amount
WEE  ARRRE
B REAR BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn Tin Tin

- 14129 14129
- 200,000 244,201
- 214,129 268,330
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

TR ITAA)

b)

AT R E 18 B AR REUR (4

iv)  Liquidity risk (continued) iv) mEBIEEER(E
Liquidity risk table (continued) TEETERSK (E)
The Group (continued) AEE(E)

Within More than
1 year 1year 2 years Total
oron  butlessthan to  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years Syears  cash flows amount
—ERy BEF MEE  REBRS
BEX  BIRWE kS itk KHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T AL TEL
31 March 2014 “E-PmEZA=t-A
Trade and other payables &R RAMENIE 8,158 - - 8,158 8,158
Convertible bond designated as 5 AR A FEFI%
financial iabilties at FVTPL TERERREL
SRARZTARES - - 200,000 200,000 205,231
8,158 - 200,000 208,158 213,389

Annual Report 2015 &3 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
iv)  Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk table (continued)

The Company
31 March 2015 ZE-RF=fA=t-R
Trade and other payables RSk ENZUE
Convertible bond designated as 6 AIRA B
financial iabilties at FVTPL TEEEREEL
cRAB TARES
31 March 2014 “E-ME=A=t-A

Convertible bond designated as % ARATEHIF
financialliabilties at FVTPL VHEEEREEL
sRAB TARES

98 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED SR &REZARAT

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—ERg
EEX
HKS$'000
TR

1,670

1,670

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—Fmg
HK$'000
TEn

b)

More than

1 year

but less than
2years
BB-F
BYRWE
HK$'000
TR

200,000

200,000

More than

1 year

but less than
2 years
Bh—F
BIRERE
HK$'000
TR

A R R EE B R REUR ()

iv)

REEE R (E
REBETERIE (E)
AT

2 years Total
to undiscounted Carrying
5years  cash flows amount

REE  AERAE
Bf  RERE RAEfE
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000

TiEn TR TEn

- 1,670 1,670

200,000 244,201

201,670 245,871

2 years Total
to  undiscounted Carying
S5years  cash flows amount

mEE  RERRE
hE  RBEE KA
HK§'000  HK§000  HKS§'000
TAL TEL THEL

200,000 200,000 205,231

200,000 200,000 205,231
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b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

v)

Credit risk

The Group

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and structured
deposit is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

The Company

The directors of the Company consider that there
is no significant credit risk on receivables from
subsidiaries given their strong financial background
and good credibility.

b)

B EREE B R RBR(E)

v)

ERER

Zs 3
R-E—AF=A=+—
B ESFHRERTE
EMERAEERZHB
BREZARBRSEER
KHFAﬁﬁﬁﬂ%Wﬂ
FHEHRTHMEEZR
[E=

RFEE R ERE -
AEEEEEEERK— i
B AEEEREER

é&ﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁ@%%
TRF - BRRERRETE
Y ma EIE RS o tbsh - A&
SEEHNBEEZHEHR
& ¥ B 4 RS 2 AT UK

O£ & - BRI TR
Z 2 BEIEH RIDRER

Beomlt  XAREER
BASEZEERRKRE X
e R o

HREFHAEEKREE
AREES TREETIR
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REBEEFER 2 EERR
BIR °
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c)

100 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BB &EREXHER AT

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2013 and 2014.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

The Group uses an independent valuer to perform
valuations of financial instruments which are categorised
into Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Valuation reports with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement are prepared by the independent valuer at
each interim and annual reporting date, and are reviewed
and approved by the financial controller and/or assistant
financial controller. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the financial controller and/or assistant
financial controller is held twice a year to coincide with
the reporting dates.

c)

ATE
7 S B AN 2 ) GA B 98 P AR 5
BreMIAZEHEMBER=
T-=FE-FT-—ME+=F
=S+-BZATELRERSD
Bl o

ARSIV E!]
TRENAEERARBEZRBT
B2 RFE - DRmEMEGER
RHZEREEEETE  XDER
FRMHREEF13HRAF
BAEIMRAEZ=BAFER
B BT EFENBZERT
R2EMMEETDEMREEZ
AERENBRMHRETE

. E—RiEE: EERE-
SR (DR EAR
RAESE EOERT S
2R EHERE) 2R
it

e F_AAE:ERAE-R
W AR (BIRBEZEDF —
JzAIBREARE) AL
AERERTABEHA
BRFT 82 AFE - AH
BEGABBREMSH
WA TN ¢

.« EZMMEE: EREAT
TEEH AR EZA
it

AEEE BB GEMEDRE
RTEEBRE_RRE=H &
BT RETHE - BAQFER
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c)  Fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

c) FEGEE
NTEBR ()

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2015 categorised into
R-EB-HAF=A=1+—-H2ZAVEFESE

Fair value at
31 March
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E-1&E
=A=+—-H
ZAYE E—R EZR E=R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FET FTET TET
The Group and AEERAAT
the Company
Recurring fair value REMATLETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Structured deposit HREMTR 27,923 - 27,923 =
Liabilities: BfE:
Convertible bond 16T AR A TEYBR
designated as financial ~ WEBHENEIEZ
liabilities at FVTPL SRAEZ AR
(E6s) 244,201 - - 244,201
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2014 categorised into
W-F-mEZA=t-B2ATENENH
Fair value at
31 March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE—F
—A=1+—H~
ZRFE FE— B E=4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT FHT FHT
The Group and the KREBRARADTF
Company
Recurring fair value REMDNTETE
measurements
Liabilities: BE:
Convertible bond FETE AN TES R
designated as financial ~ WHEEZEREE 2
liabilities at FVTPL SHRBE TR
BE% 205,231 - - 205,231

HE_Z-NER-_ZT—AF=

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2015,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

A=+—RALFE HEF—&
B Mo HESR - IRE=R
BAKEL - AEBZBRSHE
RRBEHEERGAEE 2D
FEER ERFEER
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c)

102 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &EREXHER AT

Fair value (continued)

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of the structured deposit is determined by
discounting the contractual cash flows based on forward
exchange rates (from observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period) and contracted
interest rates, at a rate that reflect the credit risk of the
counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair value of the convertible bond is equal to the
summation of the fair value of the liability component
and conversion option component, calculated using
discounted cash flows and binomial model, respectively.
The assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
convertible bond are as follows:

i) The estimation of risk free rate has made reference
to the yield of Exchange Fund Bill with same
duration as the convertible bond;

ii) The estimation of volatility for the underlying
share price has considered the historical price
movements of those companies engaged in similar
industry;

i) The discount rate was arrived at based on the
Company’s credit rating and select comparable
corporate bonds with similar maturity and credit
risk to derive the range of comparable yield to
maturity as of date of valuation and the median
range has been adopted.

iv)  The estimation of dividend yield is based on
historical dividend payout of the Company.

c)

2TE ()
FRAS-MATEFEZER
mEMERZ A HEDREEDR
PE R (2K B s M A R 2 7l
BIREHES) RATON XK
M5 F 2 EE Rz MR
MBRFTNHRERE -

FRE=RATFEFAEZER
ABEESAFESRAERDD
SRR D REMRR S
mER ZHEAEEERNE
ZRFAEZ M o AR E A
BEFRAZBRROT

) EERFENSETHR
TRRESEA 2 S EE
BB -

i) AAREREREZ AR DS
BRFEUTEZRARZ
BEEREE

iy BREDNBIBARG 2
B kBB BEUE
REEERBZIEEANE
B A REFEME]E @ A
BHEREER Z A L&
FIHpR S S B - At E B
R &R o

iv)  BREBWEZEETIERA
NRBAEZ IR EIRST ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt % 3z 3= M &

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

c)

Fair value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Major parameter adopted in the calculation of the fair
value are summarised below:

Stock price &z
Exercise price 1TEE
Risk free rate 2 [ B ) =
Discount rate BRI &
Dividend yield AZ B =

2| HARF
PRAER IR

Time to expiration
Stock price volatility

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected stock price volatility. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected stock price volatility. If the expected stock
price volatility has been 5% higher with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s and the Company’s loss
for the year and accumulated losses would increase
by approximately HK$202,000 (2014: HK$2,936,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2015. If the expected
stock price volatility has been 5% lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the Company’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses would decrease
by approximately HK$413,000 (2014: HK$2,960,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

AFEGE)

EMESRATEHABRZIARN

(48

AERTHEMRRZ TEZ2 8

HEAT -
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
—F-EF —¥-OF
=A=+—-H =A=+-A
HK$0.43# 7t  HK$0.4087T
HK$0.207& jT HK$0.20/8 T
0.403% 0.859%
8.580% 8.506%
0% 0%
1.95years £  2.95 years F
46.81% 49.57%

AFEFFERBZEARTAIE
Rig AN SR ATEHMERE - &
TEFFEEBHAREREZIEAR
B o MIEHRE R IRHE 5%
MATBEEMESERTE - &
E_E-—RF=A=+—HIF
B AEBRARBZEFARNE
B & R 5 E 18§38 hn£9202,000
B (ZZ—4F : 2,936,000/
JC) © fiw T8 ARRR (ER 1R FH1E5% -
meTA H A S &5~ - AIR
HE_ZT—HF=A=+—H8I1t
FE  AEERAREZFANE
B X RErE1E R 4 49413,000
B (ZZ—4F : 2,960,000/
JL) °

F#k 103

Annual Report



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8135 iR MizE

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-_Z-—HF=A=+—HLFE

c)  Fair value (continued) c)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
The movement during the year in the balance of financial
liability of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Convertible bond (note 27): AR ES (M27) :
At beginning of the year REH]
Total loss recognised in RESTERIZEEEHE
profit or loss:
Fair value change charged to RERIIRZA $TE """"" L))
the profit or loss,included in a St ARG B MEM
line item of consolidated 2E k&R 2
statement of profit or loss and THE

other comprehensive income

Gain on translation of convertible HME LAINE SHE 2 FTHRAR
bond denominated in a foreign T Il Al e
currency into the functional ?J\ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@&é—i
currency, included in A
administrative and other operating
expenses

Total loss included in profit or loss STAFANIEE 7 BI85
for the year

Total loss recognised in other EAEMQEI&AEFEE%%Z
comprehensive income

Exchange difference on translation of ~ # ,%yj“b‘bm% B2y gk
functional currency to presentation B EEAE 2 SN Z R

currency
Derecognition on maturity B ERIRF 4% | E 1R
Recognition on date of extension RIEER B BiER

At end of the year RER

Total loss for the year relating to: FREEEE

— financial liability held at the end of ~— — RS HIRIGRE A
reporting period, under change Z B E . ik
in fair value of convertible bond BEHEATEEE)

— financial liability held at the end — NSRS RESE
of reporting period, under ZERBEZITRR
administrative and other Hibe = &R
operating expenses B

— financial liability matured during —RERIIBZemEE
the year, under change in Z AR E S A THE
fair value of convertible bond BRI R EAD
and administrative and other BEER
operating expenses

Included in other comprehensive FTAMRE T REE 5 2 1)
income arising on translation of E%ﬁﬁ?iZE@i\E

functional currency to A

presentation currency
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A TAE ()
AWE=RATE

~

HEZHE

ﬂ

%
E=GAYEN B S RE B

Gz EREBAT

The Group and the Company
AEERAEAF

2015
—E-—FHEF
HK$000
FET

205,231

38,970

(375)

38,595

375

244,201

38,970

(375)

38,595

375

2014
—ZT 5

HK$’000
:F/%TE

189,858

15,373

(3,604)

11,769

3,604
(200,000)
200,000

205,231

5,231

6,538

11,769

3,604
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable
for coal sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns,
discounts allowed and value added tax. An analysis of the
Group’s turnover is as follows:

Sales of coal SHE MR

Interest income on bank deposit RITFRZ A EMA
Others )

The Group’s operating segments, based on information
reported to the chief operating decision makers who are also
the executive directors, for the purpose of resources allocation
and performance assessment, is more specifically focused
on the types of goods delivered and services provided by the
Group’s operating divisions.

Coal mine business is the only reportable operating segment,
from which the Group derived its revenue from sale of coal.
Accordingly, no further segment information is provided.

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location where the goods are delivered. The Group’s
turnover and results from operations are all derived from
activities in the PRC. No business activities are covered outside
the PRC. The principal assets of the Group are also located in
the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment information is
required.

EERBEAREHEERK THINEF
MERERTMBEGEMBERRZE
Yok FE MR IR 8 » AR KRR
DT

2015 2014
—ZE—HEF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
124,463 123,100
2015 2014
= —T-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
5,277 3,209
5,739 194
11,016 3,403

AEBEEDBEDEERKFER
BRErEEERRE(HT/NTE
FIREZERETON - LEIE
AEEREN BN EmEARH
AR5 KB -

RREBRE—ARELENTE - M
AEBEW YR B Z D B2 BRIRH
€ o A ERHE S DEER -

BRI E KBS MRS
E o AREZEXBEREERETR
BYBEZER - ERBIRIILER
e ARBZEIREENRGLUN G
B - Fit - BAERHEHMEDSBER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

Information about major customers ERITEZRPZER
Revenue from external customers contributing 10% or more of 1E U ZE10% B A 2 SONE P 2 Uk
the total revenue is as follow: =R
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Customer A ZBEA 34,068 17,387
Customer B ZEB 23,508 *
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute 10% or more of the * REBEE-ZT—NF=A=+—HILHF
total revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2014. B ZHEERETEEAREER K

10%3kPA £ ©

The Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-ERF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Tax expense/(credit) comprises: F8BiEx (ER)EHE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BB
— current year —AREE - _
Tax in other jurisdictions Eh R ARER 2 Fi1E
- current year —NEE 13,482 3,068
— under-provision in prior years —BEFERETE 1,351 315
14,833 3,383
Deferred tax (note 29) EIEFRIE (PI7E29) (2,178) (3,898)
12,655 (515)
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the HREBE_ZT—AFE_T—NF=
consolidated financial statements as there was no estimated A=+—HIMEFERA - WLERE
assessable profits being derived from Hong Kong for both BB 2 A ERTRA] - B R AR
years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014. Where there is Hong EHBREREAFETIELEE -
Kong assessable profits, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated WBEIREBBZERTEF - BIFH
at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits. FIB IR AT B R B 5 2 16.5% 5K

HE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for

both years.

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
profit/(loss) before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

BERFEARAMBOCEMER A
([EMRBHE]D) REERBHIEZ
BHaiEs > R BARMEFEZ
FREA25% °

AFEEBARY(KR) Bk a R
REAM2ERERTBBATRT, (8
18) 2 HBRIE

The Group
rEH

2015 2014

—EB-hfF —ZE—mEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAET

Profit/(loss) before tax BEARA,(EE) 7,136 (13,971)

Notional tax on loss before tax, ZRTEARERRES SN,

calculated at the rates applicable to (BR)ZBEANETE

profit/(loss) in the countries concerned MERIEE B&=FIE 5,780 (1,166)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MEIR RS 2 S &

for tax purposes 8,036 6,168
Tax effect of deductible temporary B RMER A N

difference previously not recognised =R BB E (2,098) (5,401)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBUA Z TS 2

tax purpose (428) (1,133)
Tax effect of temporary differences and RIER 7 B =58 R B1E

tax losses not recognised Rz BT E 14 702

Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 1,351 315

Tax expense/(credit) for the year AEEFHERS(FE) 12,655 (615)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): EREEeR S GtA) T &8 -

2015 2014
—EB-AfF —ZE—mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Amount of inventories sold HEFEr &% 69,297 102,713
Reversal of write down of inventories FE R B - (1,877)
Amount of inventories recognised as WRAHZ 2 FESHE
an expense 69,297 100,836
Staff costs (excluding directors’ EBTIRA(EENE (KisE14)
remuneration (note 14)) BRSN)
Basic salaries and allowances EARF & MOERL 9,712 10,748
Contributions to defined TE R FORINETE 2 5K
contribution retirement plan 1,098 1,149
10,810 11,897
Depreciation of property, Y BENRRETE
plant and equipment 4,742 4,512
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 9,602 -
Less: Amounts capitalised in inventories i : TS &AM £ %8 (4,105) -
Amounts included in cost of sales FFTAHEK AR 5,497 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA &
— audit services — 2B 710 710
— other services — H A AR 481 137
1,191 847
Operating leases charge on rented HEYFENLEHERS
premises 2,557 2,365
Net exchange gain on financial liabilities &% /A (B %I BRI £ 1875 A R 2
at FVTPL 2R EE 2 E RIS (375) (3,604)
Other net exchange (gain)/loss HABME N (M) /B8 (366) 3,801
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BMENKREZEE
plant and equipment 4 116
Interest income on financial assets not &R A F{EFIERITEBZEA
at fair value through profit or loss BRIE 7 SR E E 2 FBUA (5,277) (3,209)
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$46,950,000 (2014: HK$26,917,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2015, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2014: Nil).

Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is based
on the following data:

Loss EBE
Loss for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share (Loss for the

year attributable to owners of the JEIEFAER)
Company)
Weighted average number of ZEBMETITH

ordinary shares

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 March 2015 and 2014 does not assume the conversion
of convertible bond since its conversion would result in a
decrease in loss per share. The basic and diluted loss per
share are the same.

R ESREARREE
EBERzER(RRARHEEA

R EBRERNLET
B8 2 BRI

KARBEANELGABESE—
HERARA T BERRERE ZE
18 46,950,000 % 7T ( = F — Y % :
26,917,000/ 7T) °

REBE_T-AF=—A=+—HIL#F
JE RBE IR AN TME IR AR -
B W& B A RIAR I EZ IR E
RS (ZZT—F : &) -

BREARBEER
AREFEBANREFAESRERN N #
SEBERIRE BB E

2015 2014
—E-E1F —E—pUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
(5,519) (13,456)
Number Number
of shares of shares
BRoEE & B
765,373,584 765,373,584

HREBRATBRRESSERTRER
B WEHAEBE-_E-AFR-FT
—OE=ZA=+—-RILFEEREE
EEBTERREEER - ZREX
NESERRAAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

a) Directors’ emoluments a) EEi&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven EffENSELtR(ZE -
(2014: six) directors were as follows: FRRB)EZZHeNT
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-—ZE-—af¥=A=+—H1t
FE

Other emoluments

Hitfi&
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
2 =4 RIRER
e REAMER BB FEEG

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FERT TR TR

Executive directors: #{TE= :

Lo Fong Hung ‘A - 720 18 738
Wang Xiangfei FEAR - 480 18 498
Kwan Man Fai B 1E 480 - - 480

Independent non- BIFEHITES !
executive directors:

Wong Man Hin, |

Raymond 288 - - 288
Lam Ka Wai, Graham M Z & 288 - - 288
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey — BRiZ#E 288 = = 288
Xu Xiao Sheng N

(appointed on (R=Z—m4

14 July 2014) +A+mHH

BEE) 206 - - 206

1,550 1,200 36 2,786
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) a) EEMe(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE-ZE—NE=A=+—HI1
FE

Other emoluments

HAib Bl

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
e 2R RIRIEA]
e REAMEFR FTEIfHRK HaEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT FAT FAT

Executive directors: #{TE&= :

Lo Fong Hung AL - 720 15 735
Wang Xiangfei THR - 480 15 495
Kwan Man Fai B E 480 - - 480

Independent non- BUFEHITES !
executive directors:

Wong Man Hin, Epd

Raymond 288 - - 288
Lam Ka Wai, Graham X & 288 - - 288
Chan Yiu Fai, Youdey  BRiR#E 288 - - 288

1,344 1,200 30 2,574
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

b)  Senior management’s emoluments b) BHREEAEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in RAEBREZESHFALTH =
the Group, three (2014: three) were directors of the H(ZZE—OF : =R)BART
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The EE5 HMEHN L % TR
emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two) highest Z(ZZE—F : MEB)EaHA
paid individuals were as follows: TZBEmT
2015 2014
—EB-AfF —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Salaries, allowances and e R REAMET
other benefits 1,119 1,653
Retirement benefits RNERET B R
scheme contributions 32 30
1,151 1,683
The emoluments of two (2014: two) highest paid ME(ZE—F : WA &=
employees fall in the following band: EEZMEN T TS EHE :

Number of individuals

AE

2015 2014

—E—FHEF —ZE—pE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%8 72

1,500,000 7T = =

c) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the c) REE_Z—AF=A=+—H
directors of the Company or the five highest paid RZZ—MNE=RA=+—HI1EM
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the EFEE @ AEBEWEAANQEE
Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the E R AR EH A T EA
two years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014. AR EMEARE R INE

REEE 7 2E) - JEREE
BERRS(E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

The Group AEE
Furniture,
Leasehold equipment
land and Plant and and motor
buildings machinery vehicles Total
HELHE B
BF BEREE RERAE ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT TAL

Cost B
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H 8,649 20,312 5,397 34,358
Exchange realignment B 5 5% 164 386 102 652
Additions NE - 4,932 720 5,662
Disposals HE - (190) (918) (1,108)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=1+—H 8,813 25,440 5,301 39,554
At 1 April 2014 RZE—NEMA—H 8,813 25,440 5,301 39,554
Exchange realignment [ i % 16 41 9 66
Additions NE 2,759 1,513 103 4,375
Disposals & = (10) ! (17)
At 31 March 2015 RZE—HF=RA=1+—H 11,588 26,984 5,406 43,978

Accumulated depreciation R EREH
and amortisation
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMA—H 2,083 8,491 2,569 13,143
Exchange realignment fE 5 R 39 161 49 249
Charge for the year AEEZH 540 2,857 1,115 4512
Eliminated on disposals i E R 4 5 - (115) (431) (546)
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-ME=A=1+—H 2,662 11,394 3,302 17,358
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—MEMA—H 2,662 11,394 3,302 17,358
Exchange realignment [ 5 R 5 18 6 29
Charge for the year NEETH 461 3,252 1,029 4742
Eliminated on disposals HEEF S = (©) ") (13)
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—HF=FA=1—H 3,128 14,658 4,330 22,116

Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2015 RZZ-RAF=A=1+—H 8,460 12,326 1,076 21,862
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NFE=A=1+—H 6,151 14,046 1,999 22,196

Annual Report #=3; 113



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

The Company VNN
Furniture and
equipment
HERRRE
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 5%
At 1 April 2013 N _E—=FMAF—H 1,620
Exchange realignment M 5 SR E 30
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—mF=A=+—H 1,650
At 1 April 2014 R-_ZE—MFHA—H 1,650
Addition B 9
Exchange realignment bE 5 X 3
At 31 March 2015 W_E-—RF=A=+—H 1,662
Accumulated depreciation and At REH
amortisation
At 1 April 2013 W-ZZE—=FHmMA—H 431
Exchange realignment (IR 8
Charge for the year REF LT H 471
At 31 March 2014 R_E—MNFE=A=+—H 910
At 1 April 2014 R-E—mFMNA—H 910
Exchange realignment [E o L 2
Charge for the year REE T H 472
At 31 March 2015 R-_E—RF=HA=+—H 1,384
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 March 2015 W_E-—RF=A=+—H 278
At 31 March 2014 R_ZE—NFE=RA=+—H 740
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

The Company (continued)
The above property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
of the leases or 3.33%

10% to 25%

10% to 25%

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery
Furniture, equipment and
motor vehicles

The analysis of carrying amount of leasehold land and building is
as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held under MR EBIRIN -
medium term lease R EEARE

R (4])
Eit¥x - BEMRBAERERT
PIERGHRITE -

ME+TME LA EFHk
BF 3.33% 2 M& &
RS K i 23 10%%25%

R BHER 10%%E25%
RE

HE L METFREEINET

The Group
AEW
2015 2014
—E-EF —Z Y4
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
8,460 6,151
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

Cost
At 1 April 2013
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2014

At 1 April 2014
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2015
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

At 1 April 2013
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2014

At 1 April 2014
Exchange realignment
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2015

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

Exploration
and
evaluation
assets
BER
THEE
(Note i, iii & iv)
(B i faiv)
HK$'000
TET
2%
R-Z—=%MA—H 49,928
[ R 948
R-Z-—MNE=A=1+—H 50,876
RZZ—NFNA—H 50,876
BT 82
R-E-—A&=A=+—H 50,958
ZtEERAEE
R-ZZ—=%MA—H 49,928
[ 5 R 948
R-E-—mNE=A=+—H 50,876
RZZ—NEMA—H 50,876
[ 5 AR 82
AEELH -
R-Z—R%F=A=1—H 50,958
IREE

RZZE-hF=A=t—-H =

R-Z-WE=A=1—H -
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The Group
AEE

Mining

right

R
(Note i, i, &iv)
e

HK$'000
TR

105,683

2,007

107,690

107,690
173

107,863

33,806
642

34,448

34,448
67
9,602

44117

63,746

73,242

Total

nE

HK$'000
TR

165,611

2,955

168,566

168,566
255

158,821

83,734
1,590

85,324

85,324
149
9,602

95,075

63,746

73,242
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Notes:

i)

i)

The mining right and the exploration and evaluation assets acquired
as part of a business combination during the year ended 31
March 2010 were initially recognised at their respective fair values
on acquisition with reference to a professional valuation using
discounted cash flow method based on the operating environment
of each of the operating entities.

Mining right

At the end of each reporting period, the management conducted
impairment review of the mining right. As at 31 March 2015 and
2014, with reference to valuations conducted by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow method, the
management expected that the recoverable amount of the mining
right exceeded its carrying amount.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration and evaluation assets represented the exploration
right possessed by the Group. For the year ended 31 March 2013,
the exploration and evaluation assets were fully impaired in profit
or loss based on a professional valuation, which concluded that no
defined or reliable future economic benefit could be drawn due to
the following facts and circumstances:

the exploration right has been renewed twice and the expiry
date of it would be on 20 February 2014;

- according to a legal opinion obtained by the Group, that
under PRC law and regulation the exploration right can only
be renewed twice, and no further renewal for period beyond
20 February 2014 can be obtained;

- the management re-assessed the status and considered
that the Group is not able to obtain a mining right prior to the
expiry of the exploration right; and

= that no defined or reliable future economic benefit could
be drawn based on the current progress relating to the
Optimization and Upgrading Plan (as defined in iv below).

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the relevant government
bureau exercised an administrative discretionary right and granted a
renewed exploration right with valid period from 25 February 2014 to
25 February 2016.

MFE

i)

iii)
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Notes: (continued)

i)

iv)

118 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B &REX AR AT

Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, despite the successful renewal
of the exploration right, with reference to a professional valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer, the Group
concluded that no defined or reliable future economic benefit could
be drawn from it and the impairment loss should not be reversed
with the following reasons:

- The Group intends to hold the exploration right until the
Optimization and Upgrading Plan is approved;

- due to the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, it is not feasible
and practicable for the Group to obtain a mining right; and

- that defined or reliable future economic benefit could not be
drawn based on the current progress of the Optimization and
Upgrading Plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Department of Land and
Resources of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region (the “Xinjiang Land
Department”) informed the Group that pursuant to the instructions of
the National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, the
Xinjiang Land Department is planning a management restructuring of
different coal mines in the Xiheishan Mining Area (the “Optimization
and Upgrading Plan”), where the Group’s Kaiyuan Open Pit Coal
Mine (the “Kaiyuan Mine”) and Zexu Open Pit Coal Mine (the “Zexu
Mine”) are situated.

On 14 March 2012, a proposal (the “Proposal”) was issued by
the People’s Government of Mulei Kazak Autonomous County,
where the Group’s Kaiyuan Mine is located, to the Administrative
Bureau of Coal Industry of Changji Prefecture (the “Changji
Administrative Bureau”). According to the Proposal, which is part
of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan, the mining area of the
Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now conducting mining activities,
is proposed to be increased to 4.12 square kilometers, with the
estimated coal resources of approximately 131.18 million tonnes.
In the Proposal, it is also stated that the production capacity of the
Kaiyuan Mine will increase from 0.9 million tonnes per year to 3
million tonnes per year.

MFE

i)

iv)

(8)
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Notes: (continued)

iv)

(continued)

The Group received a letter dated 13 June 2012 issued by the
Changji Administrative Bureau (the “13 June Letter”) informing the
updated status of the Optimization and Upgrading Plan. According
to the 13 June Letter, the following proposals in relation to the
Group’s Kaiyuan Mine and Zexu Mine (the “Updated Proposals”)
have been submitted to the working group head office for coal
industry structural upgrade work of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region for consideration and approval:

- The Group’s Kaiyuan Mine will be restructured and upgraded,
and the exploration rights in the Zexu Mine granted to the
Group will be terminated; and

= The mining area of the Kaiyuan Mine, where the Group is now
conducting mining activities, is proposed to be increased
from 1.1596 square kilometers to 4.12 square kilometers,
with the estimated coal resources of approximately 131.18
million tonnes.

The directors of the Company are of the view that as the Updated
Proposals are still subject to final approval by the People’s
Government of Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region, it is uncertain
whether the above changes will be materialised. The Group will
engage an independent qualified valuer to value the additional coal
resources when the final approval is obtained.

FaE : (8%)

iv)
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17. GOODWILL 17. BE
The Group
TEE
HK$’000
FHT
Cost AR AN
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and R-ZE—=FmA—A -
31 March 2015 —E-F=A=+—HK
—F-AF=A=+-A 87,469
Accumulated impairment RItEE
At 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 and R-ZZE—=FWA—A
31 March 2015 “E-NFE=A=+—HK
—Z—RF=A=+—H 37,469

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

SREE
R-B-—HF=HA=+—H

RZE—NMF=A=+—H
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At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to these CGUs is as follows:

Qitai County Zexu Trading SEBREBHERREML
Company Limited NEI( B T IR €
FEBEEEEEREETAR) EEBA)

(“E&E CGU")

Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal REZIRHERBEREF
Company Limited NRI([HREREESE
(REHZINRERBRE LR BAL)

(“Mining CGU”)

The goodwill arising on acquisition of Qitai County Zexu
Trading Company Limited (3 & 2B E AR & T2 7)) and
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Company Limited (/K £ 25l R &
RAREEAT]) was fully impaired during the year ended 31
March 2011.

RMEMRERE - PEEZERS
E

ELEMZHEREENT
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E—mE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET

WESEHEEHEAREERAR
AREHIREREREEABMELE
ZEERBE_T——F=A=1—
HILFEERBURE
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The Group

The balance represents a deposit placed with a bank to
secure the Group’s obligation to restore the environment after
mining. The deposit bears interest at the prevailing bank saving
interest rate and can be withdrawn upon the expiry of the
Group’s mining right and fulfillment of environment restoration

obligation.
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LM - A
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UL BB A B RIE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non
interest-bearing and repayable on demand.
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AEE
EHREAREREITRBREZRR
ZEEMRBITFEZFR - Tz
ERZRITHEENEETE - XARAK
KB RBEREER N TKIRREERR
EEFEEER °

The Company
AT

2015 2014
—ZE-EF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THETT
153,765 163,747
153,765 163,747

FEAFT B A B ARESEER - TR
RAFEERIERE -
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Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at ARABIR-_E—FER - NFE=
31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows: A=+—BEE TEWEA SR
LU
Place of
incorporation/
registration Issued shares/
Class of and operation  registered capital Percentage of equity Principal
Name of subsidiary sharesheld  EEMRL/3H S¥TR1H,/  attributable to the Group activities
WEARER FisReER REEHY afEE rEEEERERA L TEEHR
2015 2014
21 _—T-MF
% %
Directly held:
EERE:
Lasting Power Investments Ordinary BVI US$1 100 100 Investment
Limited LER EBRLES = holding
NERERBRRA REEKR
Indirectly held:
BiEEs
Star Fortune International Ordinary BVI US$100 100 100 Investment
Investment Company Limited 3% RERUHE 100%T holding
(“Star Fortune”) REER
ENEBERREBRAT
(TENE&])
Ming Kei Kai Yuan Investment Ordinary Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 100 100 Investment
Company Limited Tia % 60,000,000 7T holding
RESRREERAA REEKR
Mulei County Kai Yuan Coal Registered PRC RMB30,000,000 100 100 Coal mining and
Company Limited HMER i AR #30,000,0007C sales
REZRRERBEREENR IR R E R X
Qitai County Zexu Trading Registered PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Holding of an
Company Limited FfE AR H AR#2,000,0007 exploration
ARBREEEERAAARY right of coal
mine
FrR R ERIE
* Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-owned @ RIEREAG T AN BERE
enterprise
# Registered under the laws of PRC as domestic enterprise # RIERBAG G AE RN
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, ERINREARNREERAETEZER
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally EEEENEEZAEBNE AT °
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of EERE FHIEMKME AR 2 &R
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result SEYERBNILE °

in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as MNERNFERNEMER @ HEMBA
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. RSB BT 2 ERES °
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Consumables
Coal

I
N
s
S0

&
Xk

No inventories were written down/reversal of previous written
down were made for the year ended 31 March 2015. During
the year ended 31 March 2014, a reversal of HK$1,877,000
for inventory written down in prior year was recognised in profit
or loss as certain government levy on coal production was

cancelled.

Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
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The Group The Company
rEHE b N
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—HF —T—NF ZZEB—HFE —T—NOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FExT FAET
FEM S R FE W =R 76 = = =
TENFIE - e Rk

E A FEUGRIR 2,993 1,805 434 227
3,069 1,805 434 227

The Group
AEE

2015 2014
—E-ERF —Z—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THTT
1,410 927
19,071 12,673
20,481 13,600

VTEREE_T-AF=A=+—H
IEFERORTEE BB AT FE 2 M

W BE-T-ME=A=1—

Hit

FEAR - ARNETHRREE BT
ERUH - N IB R R EE L5

& 27 EMUR1,877,00078 7T
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All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

The Group’s sales to coal customers are largely done on
payment in advance basis. For certain well-established
customers, the Group allows an average credit period of 90
days.

Included in the trade and bills receivables are bills receivables
amounted to approximately HK$76,000 (2014: HK$Nil) aged
within one year.

At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade
receivables (presented based on the invoice date) and bills
receivables (presented based on the issuance date of relevant
bills), net of allowance for doubtful debts was as follows:

Within 90 days CENA
91-180 days 91XE180K
181 days — 365 days 181 KRZE365K
Over 1 year BiE1F

As of the end of reporting period, the trade and bills receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a customer
for whom there was no recent history of default.

AT B IR E SR E A R FURTR IR
—FRREHERBFAX °

REBRPEREP 2 HERI D ILTE
NRIBEAEEL - RETHERERTZ
BFEME @ AEBE A FHEE
BI0K °

STABKER R EREER  EKE
E4776,0008 L (= —UF « T8
7T) c BRERAE—FR -

IR BRI A RES - R E R (IR RE
HHIZ%)) R EKEE (REE R R
HREZY) - RNBRRIERER 2R
BT T

The Group
AEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT FAT
76 -
76 -

RBERFEAERE - RBHARER
T 2 e B TR e W SR BT R
Rk e P —REF B -
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As at 31 March 2015, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks (the “Banks”) in the PRC (the
“Derecognised Bills”), to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to these suppliers with a total
carrying amount in aggregate of HK$5,295,000 (2014: HK$NIl).
The Derecognised Bills will mature in one to six months
after the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the
Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the Banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it derecognised the full carrying amounts of
the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure to loss arising from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted
cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills equal
to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant since the likelihood that
the Banks will default is remote.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any gain or loss
on the date of transfer of the Derecognised Bills (2014: HK$NIil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.

The Group and the Company

Exchange rate linked structured deposit

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group entered into
a principal protected exchange rate linked structured deposit
that was denominated in United States dollars (“‘US$”) with
the aggregate principal amount of US$3,496,000 (equivalent
to HK$27,267,000) (2014: US$NIl (equivalent to HKS$Nil))
with banks with two months maturity period from the date of
inception.
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mMEETHERSEELE PR
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BREWK])  LENENZSEER
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—F  THEIL) 2B ER - 4RIERE
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AEERARNF
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—pUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
27,923 -

HE-_ZT—RFE=A=1+—8HI1*
B AEEHEBTVASLES
3,496,000 7t (48 & 7 27,267,0007%8
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The Group and the Company (continued)

The structured deposit is classified as financial asset
designated as at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March
2015 and has been arrived at on the basis of the valuation
carried out at that date by Roma Appraisals Limited, a firm of
independent and qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Fair value gain of HK$656,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2015 was recongised in profit or loss (2014:
HIKSNil).

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprised bank
balances and cash held by the Group and short-term
deposits amounting to approximately HK$334,151,000
(2014: HK$319,460,000) with an original maturity of three
months or less, while the bank balance and cash held by the
Company amounting to approximately HK$156,736,000 (2014:
HK$192,047,000). The bank balances and bank deposits
carried interest at market rates ranging from 0% to 1.43%
(2014: 0% to 1.43%) per annum.

Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following
amounts denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

AEER AR (H)
R-ZZE-—hF=A=+—H &Blk
TFROBERIEERAFEIIKRLER
BAREZEMEE  WERHBEIL
RaBERBEAERM(EEREETE
M) BBERRTEERARNZAE
TZHEEEERBEFR -BE-T
—hRF=A=t—HIEFEZAFE
W %5666,000/8 7T ( ZE—MF : T
TO)ENREHER o

AEBZASMRSEEHEREAR
EEFBFZRITEHEKBEURER
B AZEARUAZEHER
#9334,151,0008 L ( = E — Y F
319,460,000/ 7C) * MAREIFF 2
RITHERR MR £ 49/5156,736,0007%8 7T
(ZZ V0% : 192,047,000/ 7T ) ° iR
THBRBITEFEN TOER1.43E

—ZE—F : 0EE1. 43B)2mH
FFIRETE -

RekReFEBEEBRETNIIARE
BEREEB AN INESHEZFUA ¢

The Group The Company
rEH NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—F-HF —TNF —B-HF —T@OF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TR FERT TR

HK$ BT 106,736 192,052 156,736 192,047

As at 31 March 2015, the balances that were placed with RZE—RFE=A=+—8 " F

banks in the PRC amounted to RMB139,388,000 (equivalent
to HK$177,008,000) (2014: RMB100,309,000, equivalent
to HK$127,177,000). Remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to the exchange controls imposed by the PRC
government.

RAEBRBEARTZER R ARE
139,388,0007T (#8& 7177,008,000/%8
T)(ZZ—m4F « AR¥100,309,000
7T BB 127,177,000 7T ) © [EH
FERBIINZESAXHERNTETLZ
HNE B HIFTRRRR ©
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At the end of reporting period, the aging analysis of the trade RIREEAE &R - ENER(REBE
payables (presented based on the invoice date) were as HHEAZ%)) 2 BREe DT T -
follows:
The Group The Company
rEH KAT
2015 2014 2015 2014

—F-1F —T-MF =T-HF T 0OF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TBx THT TBx BT

Within 90 days 90K A 3,203 1,540 - -
91-180 days 91RXE180K 1,016 559 - -
181-365 days 181K E365K 1,177 750 - -
Over 1 year B F 176 45 - -
Trade payables ERER 5,672 2,894 - -
Receipt in advance Sl eSO 1,432 1,237 = =
Value-added tax and non-  JERTIS(ET &
income tax payable FEFTISHL 927 3,443 = -
Government levies payable  [E BT E
— Economic development — R AR
fees in coal resources KEERE
areas 29,936 29,888 - -
— Others —Hh 5,256 4,741 - -
Accrued expenses FEETE R 2,437 2,149 1,670 1,407
Other payables HAb e FRIR 6,120 5,264 = -
51,680 49,616 1,670 1,407
All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FMEEMNEZREMENZIBTEEN
recognised as income within one year. —FERFERERERA
The average credit period of purchases of goods is 180 days. FREE R 2 FHHEEH 5180k o ANE
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to B4 EHBRKRESEEE - BIERH
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. BEMRBAEZERRENEGE -
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a) Movements in components of equity a) HEZBHED
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREB Z R E R ESEZRD 2 F
balances of each component of the Group’s TR FEREHBEREN GRS =
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated FE) R - ARRERERTD 2
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FYIREREHFESEYMOT ¢
the Company’s individual components of equity between
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company
VNN
Exchange
Share  translation  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
RiaE Bt N4 ZitFiE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
(note ) (note iv) (note vi)
(Biz) (fitiv) (Fitzhi)
At1 April 2013 RZE-=FMA—H 191,534 12,340 128,013 (244,496) 87,391
Loss for the year FREE = = = (26,917) (26,917)
Exchange differences on tranglation of BENRERAZTIEE Y
functional currency to presentation ERZE
currency - 3,112 - - 3,112
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERIEEELE s 3112 - (26,917) (23,809)
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-Z-ME=A=+-AR
“Z-WEMA-A 191,634 15,452 128,013 (271,413) 63,586
Loss for the year ERER - - - (46,950) (46,950)
Exchange differences on translation of BENHEERZTIEE
functional currency to presentation EHES
currency = 92 = = R?
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBELEE = 92 = (46,950) (46,858)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-AF=A=1-H 191,534 15,544 128,013 (318,363) 16,728
Notes: B
i) Share premium i) B =E
The application of share premium is governed by Section 40 ERRMEEAZARE—N
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. N—FRRVEFL0KEEE
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a)
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Movements in components of equity (continued)
The Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

i)

i)

iv)

v)

Vi)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve arose from the acquisition of the additional
equity interest of subsidiaries in prior years. It represents the
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets of
the subsidiaries attributable to the additional interest at the
dates of acquisition and the fair value of consideration paid
by the Group.

Statutory reserves

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
regulations, all of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the statutory
surplus reserve, which are non-distributable, before profit
distributions are made. The amounts of the transfers are
subject to the approval of the boards of directors of these
companies in accordance with their articles of association.

Specific reserve for maintenance and production funds
Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is
required to transfer maintenance and production funds at
fixed rates based on relevant bases to a specific reserve
account. The maintenance and production funds could be
utilised when expenses or capital expenditures on production
maintenance and safety measures are incurred. The amount
of maintenance and production funds utilised would be
transferred from the specific reserve account to retained
earnings.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of functional currency
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 3(p).

Special reserve

The amount in special reserve represents the difference
between the consideration paid for acquiring a further
49% equity interest in Star Fortune and the decrease in
the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests of Star
Fortune.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the
companies being acquired and the value of net assets of the
underlying companies acquired at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in preparation for its listing in 1995. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company may make
distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus in
certain circumstances.

a)

Ao (E)
AN E ()
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ii)

i)

iv)

v)

Vi)
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b)

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:
Balance at 1 April 2013,
31 March 2014 and
31 March 2015

Issued and fully paid:
Balance at 1 April 2013,
31 March 2014 and
31 March 2015

St

2w

Bl

o

S'igu}‘i{ 4)]}{ e
H = I

B#EITRER

RZZE—=F1H—H "
—F-WE=A=+-BR
“T-RF=A=t—HZ
it

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the

Company’s residual assets.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, and to generate sufficient profit to
maintain growth and provide a satisfactory return to its

shareholders.

b) EERERITRAE

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each Amount
BREE
0108 T2
EEREA =8
HK$'000
FAET
5,000,000,000 500,000
765,373,584 76,537

BREFAABRKRAREIRZ K
B YARARREHRLEZR —KR—
RN - FRAEBEREDHARF
ZRGEET B F AR FER -

c) HBXREHE
AEBEBEAZBEZEIZTHR
FEAE B A B R IR IS B
B - DA BREUE S5 A
HRHER - RARERIURED
5 o
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c)

132 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED BRI &EREXHER AT

Capital management (continued)

The management actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic condition. In view of this,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividend or the issue of new debt. No
changes were made in the objectives or policies during
the year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, total debt
represented convertible bond designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Equity
comprises all components of equity.

The Group
The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are
as follows:

FRBEE

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bond designated as

financial liabilities at fair value EEFZANREY
through profit or loss eHBEZ
AR ES
Total debt Y =N
Total equity BrE
Debt-to-equity ratio EmAEL=

c)

HBE AR A AR

EAREE (M)
BEEEETE R REERE
AL DEBSBEREFER
TR 2 BB B EKFER
R E ARG R Z 152 R ARFEZ
BHGFE - WARBEEIRE
EHERERIFLRE - BER
It AR E A B AUE E
TTHEB FEEERENER -
RERLEE B RRBRIEHE
A B o

AEEAEDR B AL IR
BARRBZEE - BLUNE - 42
BEAEER/RAFEIIRLE
BREANREZSRABEZTHRK
%5 - et B a2 T K

5 o

okk <

AEH
R-E—RAFR-_FT—NF=A
—t+—HZEDZAELRNT

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—pUFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
244,201 205,231
244,201 205,231
158,811 164,153
1.54 1.25
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c) Capital management (continued) c) EBAXREEGE)
The Company ANF
The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are RZE—RFR_ZE—NF=HA
as follows: —t+—HAZEZAELERNT
2015 2014
—B-HF —TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Convertible bond designated as BT AR A EFERT
financial liabilities at fair value EEZANERE
through profit or loss TRIBEZ
AR 5 244,201 205,231
Total debt FES=N 244,201 205,231
Total equity A 93,265 140,123
Debt-to-equity ratio B EL =R 2.62 1.46
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RAalHEARBRAREES
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. B AN PN 2 B N8 F 2 R
il o
The Group and the Company REBRANF
On 14 March 2008, the Company issued zero-coupon RZZBEENE=A+WHEAH  XAFR
convertible bond with an aggregate principal amount of STk 1T M B 2 400,000,0000% & AKX
HK$200,000,000 to Ascent Goal simultaneously upon BOAB Tz @R R - mEEeR
completion of the issue and allotment of 400,000,000 ordinary 1T 4 42%8 200,000,000/ 17 Z B,
shares of HK$0.1 each. The bond is denominated in HK$ AR ES - ZEEABTEHE B
and entitles the holders to convert them into ordinary shares FEA AEFRZEAERTRERR S
of the Company at any time between the date of issue of the EHH-_ZT——F=HA+=HHH
bond and its settlement date on 13 March 2011 in multiples BE RS iR i (B FRR0.2078 T (7] F
of HK$1,000,000 at a conversion price HK$0.20 (subject to L SR v =V NN o T i B
adjustments) per share. The shares to be issued and allotted RS Z8 41,000,000/ 7T 2 (Z 8 o i
upon conversions shall rank pari passu in all respects among P17 R B B 2 B0 1R Ut 2 ) e B it 3%
themselves and with all other ordinary shares in issue by KETHEARANRIAEEME BT
the Company on the date of such allotment and issue. If the BERZEAEEZEREREZ © (57
convertible bond has not been converted, the Company shall WAL E S R EEM - KA R|ERN-F
repay the principal amount of the outstanding convertible bond —— = A+ =HEBZEREHT]
to Ascent Goal at 13 March 2011. MG EAS 2 NSRS o
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The Group and the Company (continued)

On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a deed of
amendment with Ascent Goal, to extend the maturity date of
the convertible bond for 36 months and the conversion period
will accordingly be extended for 36 months from 14 March
2011 (date of extension) to 13 March 2014. Apart from the
extension of the maturity date and the conversion period, all
terms of the convertible bond remain unchanged from the
original terms.

Following the change of functional currency from HK$ to RMB,
the board of directors is of the view that the convertible bond
upon extension of maturity date (“Convertible Bond”) was no
longer convertible at a fixed for fixed relationship. Accordingly,
the Convertible Bond was designated as a financial liability at
FVTPL in the consolidated statement of financial position.

On 21 January 2014, the Company entered into a second
deed of amendment with Ascent Goal (“New Convertible
Bond”), to extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bond
for 36 months and the conversion period will accordingly
be extended for 36 months from 14 March 2014 (date of
extension) to 13 March 2017 (“New Maturity Date”). Apart
from the extension of maturity date and the conversion period,
all terms of the convertible bond remain unchanged from the
original terms.

The New Maturity Date is considered to be a substantial
modification of terms of the Convertible bond as the discounted
present value of the cash flows of the New Convertible Bond
is more than 10% different from the discounted present value
of the cash flows of the outstanding Convertible Bond prior to
the extension of maturity date. As such, Convertible Bond was
derecognised and New Convertible Bond was recognised.
The fair value of the New Convertible Bond as at 14 March
2014 amounting to approximately HK$200,000,000. An
extinguishment loss of approximately HK$211,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss.
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The Group and the Company (continued) AEBERANF(E)

The Convertible Bond and New Convertible Bond were valued AR ES LI A B ESEARANT
by the directors of the Company with reference to valuation EELERASEVEBEEC B LS
reports issued by independent qualified valuers not connected EREEMATEAMERSEETHE
to the Group. The increase in fair value of the Convertible Bond BoafEESFRER T —=F=
from its carrying amount as at 31 March 2013 to the date of A=+t—HZzEmEZEHB LN
extension, and the New Convertible Bond from the date of AR ESRIEHHBE —T—F
extension to 31 March 2014 and during the year ended 31 —A=t—HAkEE_ZE—RF=A
March 2015 have been recognised in the profit or loss. =t —HIEFECAFEEBRERE

R o

The movement of the Convertible Bond and the New AR ES R BIRESENFERZ
Convertible Bond for the year is set out below: BEHFHI|AT -

Convertible Bond

ABRES
2014
—T—F
HK$’000
FAT
Balance at beginning of the year FH s 189,858
Fair value change charged/(credited) to the PigzER (Gt A) 2 AT EE
profit or loss 10,142
Gain on translation of Convertible Bond AR EHRINEIRE BT EHE
denominated in a foreign currency into the FHEZ WEs
functional currency (8,604)
Exchange adjustment arising on translation of BENRE S AR EBIRELE Y
functional currency to presentation currency AR - W EMEEKRARN
and charged to other comprehensive income 53 3,604
Derecognition on maturity A E HARF 4% | E TSR (200,000)

Balance at end of the year
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The Group and the Company (continued)

Balance at beginning of the year
Recognition of New Convertible Bond

on 14 March 2014 (date of extension)

Fair value change charged to the
profit or loss

Gain on translation of New Convertible
Bond denominated in a foreign
currency into the functional currency

Exchange adjustment arising on translation
of functional currency to presentation

currency and charged to other
comprehensive income

Balance at end of the year

Analysed for reporting as:
Non-current liabilities

Difference between carrying amount and

maturity amount:
New Convertible Bond at fair value

Amount payable on maturity

g

FHERR

R=Z—p4=A+mA
(G5 B 8 #ERR
AR AR 25

RIBARS 2 AT ER

A A ESRINEIRE
R RFHEZ Wt

HE TN B 25 SR
BB AR - R
H 2 ERAIR

FREER

DITEHMAT
FRBEE

FREEEZIHSER
ER
BAHEIRZ

AR B
MRS R R
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B R AR E (4

New Convertible Bond

AR ES
2015 2014
—E-EF —E—UF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
205,231 -
= 200,000
38,970 5,231
(375) =
375 =
244,201 205,231
244,201 205,231
244,201 205,231
200,000 200,000
44,201 5,231
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27. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)
The Group and the Company (continued)
None of the Convertible Bond or New Convertible Bond had
been converted into ordinary shares of the Company during
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Fair value change charged to profit or loss:

27. AIARES (&)
AEBMBANF(E)
HE-Z—RFE-_Z—NF=A
=t —HIEFEWETRRES S
R ESFCEER AR AR LB

RIBEING 2 APESZS) -

2015 2014

—E—FF —T—puF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FiBT

Convertible bond ATRRES - 10,142
New Convertible bond Al AR E S 38,970 5,231
38,970 15,373

28. PROVISION FOR CLOSE DOWN, RESTORATION
AND ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

28. EAR - BERRERASBRHE

The Group AEE
HK$’000
TET
At 1 April 2014 RZZTE—MOFMA—H 1,996
Provision B 762
Exchange difference ME 5 ZERR 4
At 31 March 2015 RZE—RF=A=+—H 2,762
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Mining activities may result in land subsidence or damage,
which could lead to losses to the residents of the mining areas.
Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the Group is required
to make compensation payments to the residents for their
losses resulting from land subsidence or damage, or to restore
the mining areas back to certain acceptable conditions.

Under existing legislation, management believes that there are
no probable liabilities that will have a material adverse effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
The PRC government, however, has moved and may move
further towards the adoption of more stringent environmental
standards. Environmental liabilities are subject to considerable
uncertainties which affect the Group’s ability to estimate
the ultimate cost of remediation efforts. These uncertainties
include: (i) the exact nature and extent of the contamination
at various sites including, but not limited to, coal mines and
land development areas, whether operating, closed or sold,
(i) the extent of required cleanup efforts, (jii) varying costs of
alternative remediation strategies, (iv) changes in environmental
remediation requirements, and (v) the identification of new
remediation sites.

The provision for close down, restoration and environmental
clean up costs has been determined by management based on
their past experience and best estimate of future expenditure
by discounting the expected expenditures to their net present
value. However, in so far as the effect on the land and the
environment from current mining activities becomes apparent
in future periods, the estimate of the associated costs may
be subject to revision in the future. The amounts provided in
relation to close down, restoration and environmental clean
up costs are reviewed at least annually based upon the facts
and circumstances available at the time and the provisions are
updated accordingly.
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The Group

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movement thereof during the current and prior

rEH

reporting periods. L HAR 2
Intangible Accrual
assets Inventories expenses
BLEE FE ETEH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT FAET
At 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=%mMA—H 17,969 (3,786) -
Exchange realignment PE 3 % 342 (72) -
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss 825K/ (5FA) - 3,573 (7,471)
At 31 March 2014 and RZZ—OF
1 April 2014 ZA=+—H8k
—ZE—OFYAHA—H 18,311 (285) (7,471)
Exchange realignment b H A 26 - (12)
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss 18253k (5t A) (2,400) 222 -
At 31 March 2015 RZZE—hEF
=A=1+—H 15,937 (63) (7,483)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial A PSRN RETER
position:
2015
—E—fF
HK$’000
FHET
Net deferred tax liability recognised f/—\ﬁﬁk?ljiiﬂiéﬁﬁﬁﬂ’q
in the consolidated statement of EIETIEBEFE
financial position 8,391
8,391

Annual Report

UTHREERZTEREHEERE
(ﬁ?)u&ﬁ%ﬁi&%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ&i@ﬁi&

Total
Bz
HK$’000
FAET

14,183
270
(3,898)

10,555
14
(2,178)

8,391

2014
—mE
HK$’000
TAET

10,555

10,555
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At 31 March 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$957,000 (2014: HK$892,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profits streams. Tax losses will be expired in 5 years.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is payable
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated taxable profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$93,504,000 (2014: HK$59,961,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

a) Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the significant related party
transactions are as follows:

China Sonangol International
Limited (“CSI”) (note a)
— rental expenses (note b)

Notes
a) CSl is an intermediate holding company of the Company.

b) Operating lease commitment for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease with CSI
was amounted to HK$540,000 (2014: HK$495,000).
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ZHEROHARAT
(=R BIER 1) (PifiEa)
—HEMx (o)

R-ZE-—hF=A=+—H &x&H
ZARB) AT IAREE /957,000 T (=
T — M4 : 892,000/ 7T) 7] A {EHT 4
RIHH o R EEATERI B 18 2 % A
HOR - B R B IR B 1R R SRR AT
BIHAE - BABBRBNAFAZIE -

BIEFBECEMEHERTE B2
ZN\F-—A—HR  #RtEHEBEA
BIBLEATHEE 2 5 MM =k 2 I B
IFEE - BIER P R B AR R
T 18 /i F FE A 2 8 B 2 §H 93,504,000
BIT(ZZF—W4F : 59,961,000/ 7T )
RERE P mMTEL BT IR -
T R 7 52 (B8] 2 42 1) 93¢ 12 B B 2 B 2 S
M- BEEEREEATYEERTKR
AJRERE ] o

a) KREEVBHREMEIMEE
FH BRBEALR BT ¢

2015 2014
—E-RHE eSS s feS
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
675 615
ks
a) ZHBERA/ERRRZHNMER
NG

b) 1R I 81 %2 AR B R 5T 32 2 AN Al 4
HealE  AREMRE
ERBEzCEAERES
540,000 L (= F — M F :
495,000/87T) °
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b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits HEEERA
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 BT

The remuneration of directors was determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its offices, warehouse and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Lease for
properties are negotiated for a term ranging from one to three
years and rental are fixed.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FNR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF(BRE
BREMF)

by TEEEASHE
FRNEENHEMEEEEEKE
ZEBAT

2015 2014

—E-HF —E—OF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHT

3,869 4,197

68 60

3,937 4,257

EEFMBFMEEg2RES

ZEAARBREMIGBEEERE
AEBIEAREA

AEEREBECEHELHEBAETS
FHRAE - FEMBIBE - ZEY
E2HNBKEREN T —FE2=F
g HELEFE -

RS HREAERE - AEEREAA
BHELHE 2 KRB REHEER
TRAGER AT HAR 2 AR -

2015 2014
—E—HEF —E—E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
1,012 2,349

- 471

1,012 2,820
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 August
2003 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to directors and eligible employees and expired
on 27 August 2013.

According to the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers,
customers, any technical, financial, and legal professional
advisors who have contributed to the Group, to subscribe for
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of share options granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from the
date of grant. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of adoption of the Scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no remaining
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme (2014:
Nil). The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may be
exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option. The exercise price is determined
by the directors and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, (i)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and (i)
the nominal value of the share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} 7% sk R I
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

The Scheme has expired on 27 August 2013.

Total number of securities available for issue under the share
option scheme as at 31 March 2015 was Nil (2014: Nil). The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,
no option was granted under the Schemes to directors,
employees or consultants of the Group.

There was no outstanding share option as at 1 April 2013, 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2015.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee’s salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage of
the salaries of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees, are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year to which they are related
and represented the amount of contributions payable by these
subsidiaries to this scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,134,000 (2014: HK$1,179,000) represents contributions
payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt i8R M=

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ2-_Z-—AF=A=1+—HIEE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2015 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments!
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to Accounting for Acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 Interests in Joint Operations®
Amendments to Disclosure Initiative®
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and Depreciation and Amortisation®
HKAS 38
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants®
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions#
HKAS 19
Amendments to Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
HKAS 27
Amendments to Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 10, Consolidation Exception®
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and an Investor and its Associate or
HKAS 28 Joint Venture®
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycled
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B} 7% sk R I
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with

limited exceptions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:
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All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 may have a potential impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and
other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding
impairment testing of a cash generating unit to which goodwill
on acquisition of a joint operation has been allocated) should
be applied. The same requirements should be applied to the
formation of a joint operation if and only if an existing business
is contributed to the joint operation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 11 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce
a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This presumption
can only be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

(@ when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the Group
uses the straight-line method for depreciation and units of
production method for amortisation for its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets respectively. The directors
of the Company believe that the methods are the most
appropriate methods to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer
Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a bearer
plant and require biological assets that meet the definition
of a bearer plant to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS
41. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the Group is not engaged in agricultural
activities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should
account for contributions made by employees or third parties
to defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions
are dependent on the number of years of service provided by
the employee.

For contributions that are independent of the number of years
of service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as
a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’
periods of service using the projected unit credit method;
whereas for contributions that are dependent on the number of
years of service, the entity is required to attribute them to the
employees’ periods of service.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 19 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any defined benefit
plans.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

o At cost

o In accordance with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
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Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements (continued)

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change in
status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 28:

o The requirements on gains and losses resulting from
transactions between an entity and its associate or joint
venture have been amended to relate only to assets that
do not constitute a business.

° A new requirement has been introduced that gains or
losses from downstream transactions involving assets
that constitute a business between an entity and its
associate or joint venture must be recognised in full in the
investor’s financial statements.

o A requirement has been added that an entity needs to
consider whether assets that are sold or contributed in
separate transactions constitute a business and should
be accounted for as a single transaction.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10:

o An exception from the general requirement of full gain
or loss recognition has been introduced into HKFRS 10
for the loss control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method.

° New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or
joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement at fair value of investments retained
in any former subsidiary that has become an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method are recognised in the former parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition” and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of ‘vesting
condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for
share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is
on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of
whether the contingent consideration is a financial instrument
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial
asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than measurement
period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and loss.
The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July
2014,

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial. As the
amendments do not contain any effective date, they are
considered to be immediately effective.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation
is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted
for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those
contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@ the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(o) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BZ-_ZT-—hF=A=1+—HILEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is
discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement in
a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the offsetting
disclosures (introduced in the amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
issued in December 2011 and effective for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013) are not explicitly required for all
interim periods. However, the disclosures may need to be
included in condensed interim financial statements to comply
with HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would result in
the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds being
assessed at currency level. The amendments apply from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
financial statements in which the amendments are first applied.
Any initial adjustment arising should be recognised in retained
earnings at the beginning of that period.
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34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34,

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is presented
elsewhere within the interim financial report but outside the
interim financial statements. The amendments require that
such information be incorporated by way of a cross-reference
from the interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on the same
terms and at the same time as the interim financial statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the

application of these will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

158 NAN NAN RESOURCES ENTERPRISE LIMITED B &EREXHR AT

REBE=-FT-—HF=A=1+-—
HIEFEEEMESRERZ
1£5] ~ T ERRZREBZEBE

2 1¢-)
ERMBRELU-_T—_FE_F
— M4 A 2 4 B R ()

R G EREMR BRI AERA
FEB G ERFE34R BN #ft
BomEAE MBI ER T R BEHRE
SNEFNZERZIRTE © RFERTEK
ZERET BB B mR AR NEIAT
AP IR TS b B0 (IR Edep
HARA 15 R AR R 2 IR R B R AR (1 T
ERE) -

ARAIERRY - BAZFEIHT
STUHARERSMBREENEAY
giﬁ o



For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Express in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

BE-%-

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities, and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out below.

TURNOVER

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Net gain on deregistration of
subsidiaries

Finance costs

Change in fair value of convertible
bond

Change in fair value of structured
deposit

(Impairment loss)/reversal on
intangible asset

Impairment loss on goodwill

Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
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2015

—ZE-1F

HK$000
TER

124,463

45,450

(38,970)

656

7,136
(12,655)

(5,519)

(5,342)

(5,342)

AEENBERAMBEEC MEE &
ENABEANHERESHIIMT o

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HLEE

2014 2013 2012 2011
—TMF ZF=F ZF2F ZF—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET T FET
123,100 165,041 190,974 104,428
1,402 8037 26966 (18413
- 1,141
- - - 408
- (29) - (19,845)
(15373) 24031 (12703  (1,186)
- (49,928) 39,738 (41,595)
- - ~ (15,065)
(13.971)  (16983) 55137  (95,696)
BB 6,803 (11,420 10,730
(13456)  (10,180) 43717  (84,966)
(10,221) (9,101) 43,717 (84,105)
- - - (861)
(10221)  (9101) 43717  (84,966)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY HE & B EHEE

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Express in thousands-of Hong Keng dollars)
BE-_Z-—AF=A=t—HLEFEUUFETREN)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥EREEURIEZERES
INTERESTS

At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

B0 —T-MNF —T-=F —T-—F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET FET FET

Total assets BEE 475,242 433,948 426,547 460,292 390,997
Total liabilities maeE (316,431)  (269,795) (252,173) (276,817) (259,316)
Non-controlling interests IR - - - - -
Net assets BESFE 158,811 164,153 174,374 183,475 131,681
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